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SOUTH WEST WATER PLC

South West Water Plc operates and invests primarily in the fields of water and
waste engineering, waste management and environmental instrumentation.

The principal subsidiary, South West Warer Services Limited, holds the water
and sewerage appointments for the South West region.

The non-regulaced businesses include one of the top five waste disposal
companies in the UK, a specialist environmental instrumentation company
with leading positions in its key segments worldwide, and a leading regional
construction services company.

The Group has assets of £1.6 billion and currenty employs over 3,000 people.
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SQUTH WEST WATER PLC

Highlights of the year

Strong profitable improvements in regulated and

non-regulated businesses

« profit before tax up 10.5% to £109.1 million

Significant benefits for shareholders and customers

*+ earnings up 8.2% to 77.7 pence per share

+  dividend up 11.7% to 30.5 pence

 customer rebate of £ 10 per customer payable in July 1996

3144
286.2

95 96
Turnover
{Em)

Iy
*71.8

95 86
Earnings
per share {p}

*98.7

95 96
Profit before
tax (Em}

213

S5 96
Dividend
per share (p)

1
Year ended 31 March 1996 1995 Y
£m Em change
Turnover 3144 2862 9.9
Operating profit 1341 12177 102
Profit before raxation 1069.1 98.7° 10.3
Nec assets 840.1 8443 ©.5)
Capical expenditure 110.3  139.¢  (30.8)
Earnings per share 77.7p 71.8p* 8.2
Dividend per share
inrerim 9.8p 91p 7.7
final 20.7p 18.2p 137
total 305p 27.3p L7

* Before exceptional restructuring charge of £35.5 million
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SOUTH WEST WATER PLC

Chairman’s statement

This vear I am delighted to be able to report
excellent financial results and significant
strategic progress. This marked advance stems
from the successful restructuring of the water
and sewerage utilicy and the growth of the

non-regulated businesses.

Progress in water services

Last year I emphasised the fundamental role
of the huge capital investment programme
in modernising the warer and sewerage
infrastructure of the South West region.

I also outlined the strategic re-assessment of
the structure and business processes in Souch
West Water Services Limited and its outcome:
the initiadion in 1993 of changes to achieve
a lower cost, leaner urilicy that could adjust
its focus from capital works engineering to
delivering the benefits of that investment

to customers and to shareholders.

Whart brought about the need for this
change? Immediately after privatisation
the public policy imperative was to make
quantum changes in drinking water qualhity
and waste water pollution control on an
u_nprecedenced scale and, in our case, at an
accelerating pace. The inevitable consequence
of prices rising rapidly to pay for this modera-
isation and to pay the cost of the necessary
borrowings not surprisingly caused tensions
with customers and the public generally,

The need to try to reconcile the mesting
of the long term quality goals and the cost
impact on the present generation of customers
was put to the test through the Periodic
Reeview process conducted by the Director
General of Water Services in 1994 and the
referral process at the Monopolies and

Mergers Commission (MMC) in 1995.

‘Squaring the circle’ between the need for
continued. accelerated modernisation and the
pressure for strong price constraints has been
a formidable problem. We concluded that the
major part, if not all, of the solution would lie
with us. Hence we laid the plans to transform
the wacer services udlicy.

Our aims were clear: to become more
responsive to changing customer, regulatory
and shareholder expectations and aspire to
excellence in service and efficiency.

During the year these explicit intentions
started to be realised; the seeds of change
resulted in breakthroughs. Firstly the renewed
pursuit of efficiency led, last summer, to
a reduction from three to two operating
divisions, from five to three management

tiers, and a lowering of employment costs

_unavoidably involving the loss of 500 peopie.

This puc us in a good position to deal
with the MMC conclusion that the rescraing
on price increases should be contributed to
by moving South West Water Services
Limited to the forefronc of efficiency. The
efficiency actions generated cost savings of
£6.7 million in 1993/96 and the targets set
by the MMC for the year were exceeded.

Secondly, we instigated moves to improve
customer relations. These have been set out
in detail in the operating reviews that follow
and make clear that we have taken a
progressive position, the clearest signal of
which is the paying of the special rebate of
£ 10 per customer, shared out from the
benefits of the markedly improved
perfortmance in 1995/96.

The benefits of the capital investment are
manifold. In the very trying circumstances of

last summer’s drought, with the hottest and



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

driest weather tor 200 vears. the £400 million
spent since 1939 in improving reservoirs,
enlarging water treatment works capacicy

and improving the water distribution system
proved vital. There were no rastrictions on
supply or usage for nearly halt of the region’s
residencs and the many holiday visitors;
elsewhere the restrictions wers for non-
essential use only. This was indeed a grear
improvement on previous drought years.
Further investment has taken place over the
last autumn and winter o reinforce water
supplies this sumumer to meet the higher levels
of customers’ demand.

[t can now be seen thac the £1,100
millien which has been expended since
privatisation on capital and renewal work has
successfully regenerated the neglected and
decaying infrascructure which South West
Water inherited. [t provides a much sounder
base for economic development in our region,
as well as contributing to the quality of lif
and the protection of the enviconment. This
has been made possible chrough the
re-investment of profs and signiticant
borrowings. 7

In a short period it has licerally been a
‘clean sweep’, permanent gains for the region

and its people have been made.

Progress in non-regulated businesses
The caretul development ot the non-regulated
businesses within a focused strategy is paving
off, with improved margins and the early
benefits of expansion.
QOur decision in earlier years ©o widen and

evelop the sources of carnings for the Group

in related businesses has been successful and

in this last financial year the periormance has

leapt forward, with operacing protit more than
doubling and profit before tax increasing by
over 73%. External turnover contributed
almost a quatter 6f the Group’s total urnover.
This siep change arose both from
the acquisition and successful integradion of
the UK landfill and landfill gas activities of
Blue Circle Industries Ple and of Geeat Lakes
Inscruments [nc., and also through efficiencies
and development of the existing businesses.
All three key businesses — waste management,
environmental instrumencation and specialise
construction services — maintained
competitive positions and showed profitable
growth to provide a good basis for turther

progress.

Group results
The strong outcome reflects the intensive and
continuing effores of our seaff, managers and
directors in both the regulated and non-
regulated businesses to renew and improve
the performance of the Group and propel it
to a higher potential.

All the financial numbers show substantial
uplift. Turnover and operating profit went up
by 10%. Profit before tax rose by 10.5% o

£109.1 million and earnings per share by

Keith Court at the

announcement of onr
unique fire safety
partaership with the
Devon Fire and

Rescue Service,



SOUTH WEST WATER PLC

Chairman’s statement

continued

8.2% to 77.7p. The Directors are
recomunending a final dividend of 20.7p
per share which, with the incerim dividend,
will provide a full vear dividend of 30.5p -

an increase of 11.7% over last vear.

Board structure

In the light of the potendal bids, I agreed to
the Board’s request not to retire a¢ the end of
April 1996 as previously announced, and to
stay on as Chairman and Chief Executive.

I was very pleased that the Board proceeded
to appoint Mr Alan Fletcher as the non-
executive Deputy Chairman wich effect from
14 March and announced the intention that
he will succeed as non-executive Chairman
at an appropriate time in the future, when
the Board would also appoine  group chief
executive.

In January we announced that Mc Bill
Fraser, Managing Direcror of South West
Water Services Limited, had resigned from
the Board, effective the end of February
1996, and the Board paid cribuce to his
contribution to the progress and achieve-
ments of the water and sewerage business.

The Group’s rwo major operasing and
trading segments are each led by a managing
director, who is also an execurive member
of the main Board. Mr Colin Drummeond is
the Managing Director of the non-regulated
group of enterprise companies. | was
especially pleased to be able to announce the
appointment of Mr Bob Bary as the new
Managing Director of the regulated business
~ South West Water Services Limited — wich
effect from 1 March this year. Bob, with over
36 vears of experience in the water industry,

was the utility company’s Engineering

Director undl his new appointment and
successtully managed the capiral programme,
We are well served by these owo voungsr

members of the Beoard.

Bid approaches

All shareholders have been advised of the
take-over intentions announced by Wessex
and Severn Trent in March this year which
are now the subject of investigation by the
Monopolies and Mergers Commission and
with which body we are co-operating fully.
The approaches made by Wessex and Severn
Trent were not sought, and are not welcome,
The momentum that we have established as
an independent Group is clear evidence that
we will not be diverted from our goals of
improving performance and delivering value
for the benefit of customers, sharcholders and

the South West region.

Employees

The strengzh and resilience of the Group
comes from the capable professionalism and
dedication of our staff, managers and
directors who are very determined to see the
enterprise prospet. Having sec che challenge
to the leaders and their teams in 1994 and
1995, I record my special appreciation of

their exceprional etforts,

Keith W Court

Chairman
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Lloyds Bank .75

- SWW Customer
7en Pounds—— [£10-—00 |

L é’%

Lloyds Sank P'c

Bob Baty, Managing Director of

We are Sharing the South West Water Services Limited,
. announcing the £10 rebate for customers.
~ benefits of our improved
financial and operational
performance with water and sewerage

customers by paying a special rebate for
1995/96 of £10 per customer.



SOUTH WEST WATER PLC

Operating review

WATER AND SEWERAGE SERVICES

Successful efficiency drive delivers improved
operational performance and enables enhancements

tO Customer services.

Reshaping the business

In the six vears following privatisation,
great progress has been made in bringing
about major improvements to the neglected
treatment works, pipelines and sewers of
the region.

The substandial reshaping of South West
Water Services Limited from a capiral works
dominated company to one with a ‘customer
first’ oriencation, culminated last summer in
the strengthening of our customer services
structure, the dispersal of the headquarters
operations control staff, and the reduction
from three to two delayerad and decencralised
operating divisions each now led by a director.
This change has already brought about the
achievement of higher levels of customer
related performance.

Most nocaE;ly'. we are sharing che benefits
of our improved financial and operational
performance with customers by pavinga
special rebate for 1993/96 of £10 per
customer in July this vear, the cost of which

amounts to £6.9 million.

Financial progress
Improved profitability is essencial to funding
the continuing capital prograrmumne and
delivering enhanced customer services.
Turnover of £239 million (net of the
rebate meated as an exceptional itern)
increased by 1% on 1994/95. Operating
profit increased by 6% to ,£125 million after

meeting £5.9 millicn of additional coses

necessary to deal with the unprecedented
water demand during the exceprionally
hot, dry summer, and making payments to
customers who were advised to boil their
water as a precaution following an outbreak of
cryptosporidiosis in Souch Devon. Without
these one-off costs, operating profic would
have increased by 11%.

Manpower reductions approaching
300 have been achieved since the reshaping
programme commenced in 1994/93,
Manpower savings of £5.5 million were
achieved in 1995/96. [n addition, there were
further procurement and power cost savings

of £1.2 million.

Water and Sewerage Services

Year ended 31 Maich 1996 1995
£m £m
Turnover 239.3 2367
Operating profit 124.8  117.7~
Profit before tax 104.0 95.8*
Capital expenditure 100.0 1329

*Before excepdonal restructuring charge of £33.3 million.

Continuing capital investment

In a short period in which we invested over

£ 1 billion in the business — almost £1,500 for
every customer — we have, in the light of the
Periodic Review process, moderated our
capital expenditure programme from its

peak in 1994,

Capital expenditure for water and
sewerage services was reduced from £153
million in 1994/93, to £100 million in
1995/96.
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During 1995/96, 64 major schemes
were completed wich a further 168 ongoing.
£40 million was invested in water resourcss,
treatment and distribution and £58 million in
waste water trearmene and disposal, of which
£25 million related to coastal sewage

treatment schemes.

Customer initiatives

* As part of our drive to become a leading
cuscomer orientated service provider, we are
placing the highest priority on developing and
extending a number of customer initiatives.
Last Autumn we published *Towards 2000 —
Customers First” which sets out in detail the
investment plans following determinations
made by the regulators. The company worked
closely with Ofivat’s Customer Services
Commirtee in producing the publication.

In parallel, improvements to customer
services were starced.

To gain a betrer insight into our
customers’ views, we established two new
Customer Relations Commiteees, one each
for Devon and Cornwall. These committees
are in addicion to the Ofwar Customer
Services Committee. The prime purpose of
the committees is to provide a two-way
communications chaanel between the
company and representatives of our domestc
and commercial customers. Membership
includes representacives from the Nadonal
Farmers Union, Citdzens Advice Bureaux,
Help the Aged and local councils.

To help domesde customers with genuine
financial difficuldes to pay their bills, we
established a Special Assistance Fund. This
was followed by a new approach to help such

customers through a debt management

counselling service. With these changes in
place, we suspended disconnection of
domestic water supplies for non-payment of
water charges to remove an aspect which was
of public and political concern. In addition
we provided a range of flexible payment
methods, in¢luding the introduction of
“Wartercard’, which allows customers to pay
bills in a flexible manner ac post offices,
without incurring Girobank fees. A
guaranteed standards scheme — above that
required by Ofwat — was also introduced

for services we provide, with enhanced
compensation for customers if we do not
meet those standards.

During the year, our domestic meter
option scheme was improved. The installation
charge was reduced to within a band of £17
to £67 for customers who choose to pay for
water services on 2 measuted basis; the meter
is freely provided bur remains a company
asset.

The Ofwat annual report on our levels
of customer service for the year 1994/95
identified six key areas out of seven where
we have either mainaained or provided
improvements in levels of service to our
customers. These achievements are directly
aceributable to the successful delivery of our
capital programme, our investment in process

technology and employee training.

Customers’ drinking water
Drinking water quality in 1995 was
maintained at a very high level of 99.6%
compliancs.

Because of the hottest, driest weather for
200 years, during which we supplied record

armounzs of water — over 50% more than
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Operating review

continned

during the 1976 droughr — it was necessary
1o apply lirnited water restrictions on non-
essendal use in some parts of the region.
Nearly half of the region’s cuscomers. however,
were not subject to any restrictions, and
essential supplies were maintined throughout.
This achievermnent was made possible by
careful managemenct of resources, specific
measures tzken during the summer, and
infrastructure which has benefited from
invesanent of over £400 million since
privatisation on enhancement of our warer
storage, treatmenc and distribution capacity. -

[n December 1995 we announced a
£20 million package of drought relief
measures, which included the rephasing of
schemes, to improve the amount of water
available for customers’ essential needs in the
furure. The package included new pumped
storage schemes for two of our major
reservoirs, Roadford in West Devon and
Wimbleball on Exmoor, together with other
schemes to enhance supplies in East Devon,
Mid and West Comwali. Many of these
schemes have already been completed, and
are helping to increase the amount of water
available for customers. We worked closely
with the Environment Agency in evolving
these measures.

Supplies to 270,000 of our customers in
Devon and Cornwall were furcher enhanced
by the completion of improvements to water
treatment works near Liskeard in Cornwall,
and at works in Okehampron, Barnstagle,
Buckfastleigh and Lynton in Devon. The
supply network has also been strengthened
by the duplicadon of the strategic spine main

further into West Cornwall.

Progress in leakage reduction
During the past three vears, we have
developed one of the most comprehensive
leakage monitoring and conteol programmnies
in Europe, supported by advanced computer
rechnology. Leakage from the company's
water mains has already been reduced from
26% to 22%, constituring a saving of almose
five million gallons every day.

Progress towards reducing leakage
continued with the announcement of a
499 million programme of work to renovate
ageing pipelines, 2nd o reduce leakage from
22% to 13% by the end of 1999,

The planned investment will enable the
company to save the equivalent of enough
water to supply all the domestic needs of

Plymouth in Devon every day.

Progress in inland waste water
treatment

At privatisation, after many years of under
investmene, almost 60% of our waste water
trearment works were failing discharge consent
standards, resulting in pollution of waterways
and restrictions on local developments.

By March 1996, 97% of our works met the
stringent consent standards and over 300
planning embargoes have been lifted to allow
much needed domestic and commercial
building development 1o commence in both
urban and rural communities throughourt cur
region,

During the year we maiatained the
excellent progress already made in updating
and improving our waste water treatment
works, and many major schemes were

completed ar a total cost of £15 miltion.



OPERATING REVIEW

“Clean Sweep is an immense step forward; it has
helped to create jobs and is helping to generate
hope.” David Bellamy, at the opening of ‘Clean Sweep’
for Teignmouth and Shaldon. ... ...

Perranporth in Cornwall, one of 51 bathing
waters benefiting from the successful delivery

of our ‘Clean Sweep’ programme.

Drinking water quality last year

was maintained at a very high level

of 99.6% overall compliance,
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SOUTH WEST WATER PLC

Operating review

continied

Our aim is to achieve full compliance with
the consent standards set by the Environment

Agency within the next four years.

‘Clean Sweep” — protecting bathing
waters

The largest area of investment wickin our

ten year £, 1.6 billion capiral invesunens
programme continued to be our ‘Clean
Sweep’ coastal sewage treaument improvernent
initiadve. During the year schemes were
completed at Penzance/St Ives, Combe
Martin, and Lyme Regis at a cost of

£125 million.

By the end of the financial vear, 30 of
the original 33 schemes in our *Clean Sweep’
programme were completed or under
construction including work at Dartmouth,
Falmouth and Mevagissey, three of the four
schernes deferred as part of the Periodic
Review, by the Direcror General of Water
Services. Work on improvements ac the fourth
tocation, Torbay, continues wich major
construction work being undertaken during
1996. Construction of the major
improvement scheme for Plymouch is also
underway.

Fifty-one bathing warers are now
benefiting from the firse class delivery of
‘Clean Sweep'. In 1995, 94% of the 134
designated bathing waters compled with the
European standards = this has helped the
South West region to achieve the highest
qualiey results ever recorded.

Phase one of the £100 million
Penzance/St Ives szheme in Corawall was
completed on time providing clean bathing
waters to Mounzs Bay for the 1995 baching

season, This ‘Clean Sweep’ scheme was

awarded the “Top Civil Engineering Award’
for 1995 by the Britsh Construction Industry.
The second phase of the scheme - the
St Ives transfer — was completed by the end
of 1993, and is now in operation.
The ‘Clean Sweep’ scheme for Lyme
Regis, completed in 1993, attracred a
‘Special Commendation for Environmental
Excellence’ — a new award introduced by

the Secretary of State for the Environmene.

Research and development

The company is determined to find practical
ways of introducing new technology,
particularly in water and saste processing,
and investment in research and development
continued.

The evaluation of our sludge trearment
thermal drying plant at Ashford, North
Devon is contnuing, and the work is
producing a high quality pelletised product
which the agricultural communicy is using
with great success.

Extensive trials of ultraviolet disinfection
of final efluent at waste wacer treatment
works have been conducted over the past five
years. This technology is now being applied
at five of our marine treatment schemes.

Following the outbreak of crypto-
sporidiosis in the community, development
and evaluadion of a fibre microfileer system
was successfully carried out. This system has
now been installed at Licdehempsion Water

Treatment Works in Devon.

R J Baty
Managing Director,

South West Water Services Limited
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SOUTH WEST WATER PLC

Operating review

NON-REGULATED BUSINESSES

We have achieved profitable growth in the three key
business areas of waste management, environmental

instrumentation and regional construction services.

A clear strategic focus

Qur strategy for the non-regulated businesses
targets growth markets which fit our overall
Group skills, and offer the potendial for
competitive advantage and sustained
profirabilicy.

In particular we have concencrated on
waste disposal, environmental instrumentation,
and regional construction services.

Major progress was made in 1995/96 in
each of these areas. Through our subsidiary
companies, we are now one of the top five
waste disposal companies in the UK,

a specialist environmenral instrumentation
company with leading positions in its key
segments worldwide, and a leading regional
construction services company. We have also
recendy established, through an associate
company, a position in the [ralian water

contracting and concessions market.

Major financial progress

Non-regulated turnover grew by 28% to
£111.6 million, including acquisitions, during
the year and operating profit by 114% to
£10.53 million (133% and £9.3 million after
consolidating out intra~group business). Profic
before tax after all acquisition funding costs
grew from £2.9 million to £5.1 million. The
non-regulaced businesses are now a significant
contributor to Group financial performance

and 2 basis for solid progress in coming years.

Non-regulated businesses

Year ended 31 March 1596 1985
£m £m
Turnover
- gross 111.6 §7.3
- external 76.6 51.1
Operating profit
- before consolidation
adjustments 19.5 4.9
- after consolidation
adjustments 9.3 4.0
Profit before tax 5.1 2.9

Waste management
In July 1993 we completed the acquisition
of the landfill and landfll gas activities of
Blue Circle Industries Ple, changing their
name to Haul Waste Diisposal Limited. These
assets have been combined with our existing
activides in Haul Waste Limited, giving a
much broader base with stracegic operational
landhl! sites chroughout the South of England.
The two businesses have been integrated and
trade under che single name of Haul Waste.
Haul Waste has succeaded in obuining an
enhanced planning permission for its planned
landfili sice at Dunbar, Scotland and planning
permissions for a new landfill ar Warmwelt
in Dorser and an extension to its site ac Ardley
in Oxfordshire. Planning permissions were
also achieved for new land&ll gas power
generation schemes (under NFFO contracts)

at Ardley and Horton, West Sussex.
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To exploit the increased conunercial
opportunities in rzeveling arising from the
landfll tax to be introduced in October 1996.
Haul Waste has also gained planning permission
for a materials reclamation facility to be buile
and operated, in parcnership with the relevant
local authorities, at its Masons fandfll site in
Suffolk.

Haul Waste, including eight monchs’
co.ntribucion from acquisitions, showed an
operating profit of £35.3 million compared to

the previous year’s figure of £0.9 million.

Environmental instrumentation

In the ELE Group we have established one

of the leading environmental instrumentation
companies in the world in its specialist
segments. The ELE Group'’s materials testing
and environmental instrumencation businesses,
based in Hertfordshire and Chicago, traded
profirably in over 100 countries worldwide.

In August 1995 ELE Group’s water
quality instrumentation business was enhanced
bv the acquisition of Great Lakes [nstruments
Inc. of Milwaukes, an imporzant plaver in the
American market. This has been successtully
integrated into the ELE Group with che
scrategy of capitalising on ELE’s international
distribution capability. [n September 1995 we
acquired Warren Jones Limited in
Oxfordshire, a supplier of waste water tlow
and sampling equipment; this and our existing
water quality instrumentation business,
pHOX, have all been integrated under the
overali GLI brand worldwide.

Whilst the ELE Group’s performance in

the frse half vear sutfered from adverse wrading
conditions in Europe, che sitnation was tully
recovered in the second half of the vear and
the ELE Group has started the new vear with
a strong order book. Operating protir tor the
ELE Group grew o £ 1.7 million in 1995/96
compared to £ 1.4 million in the previous

year.

Specialist construction services
T ] Brent Limited had another successful
year. Last year’s integration of our subsidiary
company, Copa, into T J Brent has worked
well. In February 1996 T ] Brent extended
its activities by the acquisition of Engineered
Products Limited, a specialist mechanical and
electrical contractor with whom it and Copa
had been co-operating for a number of years.
T J Brenc has been successful in ics stracegy
of increasing trnover outside the Group and
external turnover now exceeds 30% of its
total turnover.

Total operating profit rose from £0.1

millien to £1.4 million.

Associated undertakings

Qur mineority investment in Westcouncry
Television Limited performed ahead of plan and
made a useful contribution to pre-tax profit.

In Qcrober 1993, we purchased a 30%
share in Elcar, an established [ralian specialist
water engineering company, subsequently
renamed SIBA. SIBA made a small positive
contribudon to Group resules and is entering
the markert for operating concessions expected

to develop in Iraly

13
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Operating review

consinued

Part of Haul Waste’s landfill disposal site at Heathfield in Devon,

reinstated to PYOVI'dE an enhanced environment,

Other activities Haul Waste is a leading company in the
The Group is also involved in pursuing field of design, construction and operation
best use and value from land and property of containment landfAll sites and is ac the
holdings. This includes the provision of forefront of developments in advanced leachate
recreational facilities such as fishing, water control. Current research is taking place at
spocts and refreshments at our lakes and our landfill site in Horton, West Sussex.
waterparks in Devon and Cornwall. Copa, a division of T | Brent, further

developed their BAF sewage treazment plant

Research and development for populations up to 3,000 and have supplied
QOur non-regulated businesses continue units throughowt the UK and to the Yemen
to invest in research, development and and Singapore.

innovation programumes geared towards
product, service and environmental
improvermnent at lower cost.
During the year, the ELE Group invested
in a number of new product developments,
including an organic pollution alarm,
a colorimeter and a complete range of
analysers for water quality monitoring.
Their environmental menitoring syscem was
upgraded to include a wider range of sensors CI]JH Drummond

and advanced communication facilicies. Managing Director, Enterprise Division
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Financial review

The Group moved ahead with strong profitable

improvements, delivering significant benefits for

shareholders and customers.

Operating profit
Group turnover for the year increased by
10% to £314 million. Exrernal turnover of
the water and sewerage services business was
£238 million, up by 1% mainly influenced by
wariff increases offset by the cuscomer rebate.
External turnover of non-regulated
businesses was £25 million higher at
£76 million, including £21 million from
1993/96 acquisitions. ‘
Operating costs for the year of £181
million increased by 10% (on 1995 before
the exceptional item) influenced largely
by acquisitions and non-regulated business
growth. Within che water and sewerage
services business, a reduction in underlying
operating costs was achieved (before
exceprional items and depreciacion and
infrastructure renewals charges). Efficiency
savings of £6.7 million were achieved in
the reguiated business, mainly as a result
of the restructuring commenced last year.
Safeguarding water supplies, following
the exceptional 1995 summer and the
cryprosporidiosis incident, invoived
£3.9 million of additional operating costs.
The Group’s two major pension schemes
have substantial surpiuses and an employer

pension contribution holiday, likely to last for

the forseeable future, commenced in 1995/96.

[tems treated as exceptional operating costs in
1995/96 comprised a £7.5 million release
from the water and sewerage services business
restructuring provision established in 1995,
and £0.7 million for costs associated with the

proposed takeover bids.

Operating profit (before exceptional item
of £35.5 million in 1995) increased by 10%
to £134 million. The water and sewerage
services business contributed an operating
profit of £125 million, up 6% on 1995. Non-
regulated businesses contributed an operating
profit of £9.3 million, more than double the
profit of the previous year; a major step
forward in the Group’s non~regulated business

development programme.

Finance costs

Net interest payable was £27 million for
the year, £2 million higher than in 1995,
reflecting utilisation of cash for capital
investment purposes, and benefiting from

a well-established financing strategy. Capiral

investment on tangible fixed assets and

acquisitions totalled £213 million in 1995/96.

Nat interest payable was five times covered by
operating profis.

Interest payable totalled £49 million,
of which £30 million was at fixed interest
rates on long term loans. Substantially all
borrowings are sterling denominated. Interest
receivable is derived from investment of
temporarily surplus funds in financial
investments, and on the money market,

predominantly in sterling.

Profit before tax

Profit before tax ac £ 109 million was 11%
ahead of 1993 before exceptional items.
The improvement in operating profic was
marginally restrained by increased interest

payable.
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Financial review

coniinied

Profit before tax includes the Groups
share of net prods in associated undertakings
of £1.6 millien compared with {12 million
in 1995.

Noen-regulated businesses concribured
a proit before tax of £3.1 millien, which
compares with £2.9 million in 1995, and
has helped to provide improved recurns to

shareholders.

Taxation

The Group’s capiral investment programme
continues to generate subscantial capital
allowances. Included for the first time is,

a mainstream UK corporation tax charge,
though the major part remains a net write-

off of currently non-recoverable advance

corporation tax. The Group’s taxation charge

for the year was £ 10 millien.

Dividends and retained earnings

Group profic on ordinary activities after
taxation was £99 million (1993 £91 miliion
before the exceptional itemy).

The Directors recommend che payment
of a final dividend of 20.7p per share for the
year ended 31 March 1996. Together with the
interim dividend of 9.8p per share paid en
9 April 1996, this makes a total dividend tor
the vear of 30.3p per share, an increase of
11.7% on the dividends for 1993.

Operating profit (1991-96)
: 134.1
*121.7

106.4

64.2

90/1  91/2 92/3 93/4 94/5 95/
*Bafors excepdomnal restructuring charge of £35.5 miltion.

The increased dividend for 1995/96
signifies the introduction of an enhanced
dividend policy. The Directors intend, in
the absence of untoreseen circunstances, 1o
continue wich this policy in fucure years.

Payment of the interim and
recommended final dividends will cost
£39 million. This year £60 million, or 61%
of profit after tax, has been transferred to
reserves and retained in the business to help
fund the investmnent programme.

The dividend paid by South West
Water Services Limited to the Company for
1995/96 amounted to £46.5 million. The
total cost of the interim and recommended
final dividend of the Company is £48.6

million {including advance corporation tax).

Investment
Capital expenditure by the Group on tangible
fixed assets was £110 million (1995 £159
mitlion) of which £100 million was for the
water and sewerage business. Acquisitions
during the vear involved expendicure of
£103 million (1995 £0.2 million). After
placing fair values on the underlying assers
and liabilities acquired, 2 ,£68 million value
for goodwill resulted, which has been charged
against shaceholders” funds.

[n the opinion of the Directors the
current market value of land and buildings
is not significantly different from the book

value shown in the financial statements.

Financing

Cash fow from operating activities has
improved to £143 million (1995 £13+4
million). During the vear £6 million of
finance lease facilities were drawn down,
net of repayments, to contribute to the

funding of the capital investment programme,
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£33 million shore-term borrowings were
underraken and £3 miilion of borrowing
repavments were made.

At 31 March 1996 loan and finance
lease obligations were £346 million and the
Group held current asset investmens of
£200 million, During the year £150 million
of current asset investmients were offset against
finance lease obligatiens in order to generate
improved investment returns. Net borrowings,
" which increased by £115 million during the
year, represent +1% of shareholders’ funds
(1995 27%). At 31 March 1996 the Group
had finance lease facilities in place and
undrawn totalling £77 million and
uncommirtted short-term borrowing facilities
of over £230 million.

The balance berween fixed and floating
rate debt and current assets is varied by
means of interest race swaps and is aimed
at minimising interest rate exposure and
ensuring that at least 30% of net debt is at
fixed incerest rates. The debt maturicy profile
is shown in note 23 o the financial
statements. Borrowings to fund regulated
activities are ring-fenced from the rest of the
Group. Current asset investments derived
therefrom are similarly ring-fenced.

Treasury activities are governed by
policies and procedures approved by the
Board. The Group’s treasury policy reflects
the need to secure funds at affordable costs, to
finance the substantial long-term investment
programme of the water and sewerage services
business and the developmenc and expansion
of non-regulated activities. Investment of
liquid funds seeks to minimise the Group’s
interest rate exposure and investments are
placed with counter-parties who are highly
rated by major credit rating agencies,

The borrowing powers of the Directors

are limized to two and a half times capital

and reserves. as defined in the Company’s
Arricles of Association. At 31 March 1996 the
limit was £2.1 billion. The Direcrors confirm
that the Group can meer its short-ter
requirements from the existing borrowing
facilities without breaching covenanis or other

borrowing restrictions.

Share capital

During the vear the issued ordinary share
capital increased from £126.5 million to
£127.4 million as a resule of shares issued
under the Company’s scrip dividend
alternative and the Sharesave and Executive
Share Option Schemes.

[n comrmon with other companies in the
water sectoz, the Company is seeking powers
from: its shareholders at the annual general
meeting to make market purchases of its
ordinary shares. This is in order to increase the
Company’s flexibility to optimise the long-
term financial and tax efficiency of is capital
structure. The Board has no specific plans 10
exercise such powers in the immediace fucure

but will keep the option under review.

Shareholders’ return

The dividend of 30.3p is paid out of earnings
per share of 77.7p. On a net basis, the cover
for paymenc of dividends is 2.5 times. There
would be no significant dilution of earnings
per share if the ourstanding shares which
might be issued in respect of the Company’s
share option schemes had been in issue during
the year.

The Company’s share price started the year
ac 492p, and had risen co 677p at 31 March
1996. The value of ner assets per share, at
book value, at 31 March 1996 was 639p.

K L Hill

Group Director of Finance
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Environmental review

Protection and enhancement of the environment is

one of the Group’s key goals.

Our environmental role

Modern sociery depends on the exploiation
of natural resources to sustain economic
development and quaiiry of life. The Group
plays a major role in safely treating, disposing
and recycling the waste this produces.

South West Water Services Limited
treats che waste water from 334,000 domestic
and 46,000 business properties. Each day
this amounts to 35 million gallons which is
returned to the natural water cycle through
580 waste water treatment works. 97% of the
inland works now comply with their consent
standards — a dramatic improvement from the
60% seven years ago and 2 major contribution
to improved river water quality across the
South West region.

‘Clean Sweep' helped produce record
bathing water quality in 1995.

Treating our customers’ waste water
produces 13,000 tons of solid waste a year.
Much of this is recycled to improve
agriculeural land.

For the forsecable fusure, carefully
managed landfill will remain 2 major option
for deuling'v»;ich domestic waste. Haul Waste
is at the forefront of landfill technology with
fully contained lining systems and sophisti-
cated leachate recirculadion.

- Group companies generate 14 megawatts
of non-fossil fuel ¢lectricicy from six tandfill
gas sites, seven hydrogeneration sites and five
sewage blogas sites.

ELE Group's environmental monitoring
instruments are playing a role in environmental
protection in over 100 countries worldwide.

Conservation and access

The gathering grounds of South West Water
Services' reservoirs provide a valuable
recreational resource, as well as providing
important areas for conservation. We have
continued ro enhance and manage sensitively
the land around the reservoirs, providing
access appropriate to the location whilst
protecting and conserving habitats for flora
and fauna. We work closely with external

conservation bodies to ensure thac the land
in our ownership is managed in the most
sensitive way.

We have recently created new ponds at
the norchern end of our largest reservoir at
Roadford in West Devon o improve the
habieac for wildlife in periods when the water
level in che reservoir is reduced. Following
negotiations with Darumoor National Park
we have reached a 21 vear access agreement
which guarancees public access to over 4,000
acres of mootland and forest walks surrounding
Burrator Reservoir near Plymouth in Devon.

Environmental initiatives

The Group will preduce its first
Environmencal Report in 1996. This will
highlight our key impacts on the environment
and show the framework in which they are
managed, as well as demonstrating the
balances and priorities that need to be
considered and how we deal with them. [t
will also provide a medium for monitoring
our performance against objectives and
tArgRLs.

Our anmual Environmental Award is
designed to promote environmental awareness
amongst employees throughout the Group.

In 1995 it was awarded for a project that
demonstrated a wide ranging concern for the
environmenral impact of a service reservoir
in the Raddon Hills near Crediton in Devon.
The Awards for 1996 are being expanded to
include granes for proposed eavironment
enhancing projects.

Our environmentl newspaper “The
Pennant has continued to cover many aspects
related o the business of the Group. Highlighes
from the past vear included the award winning
Lyme Regis ‘Clean Sweep scheme where the
main pumping station and underground storage
tanks were combined with new sea defences.

B A O Hewett
Director of Technical and
Environmenral Atfairs
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Board of Directors

Keith William Court

BA. FIPM (61)

Exeentive Chairman

was appointed on | Sepember 1939

and was chairman and chiet execuive

of South West Water Authority from

| August 1987, Previously 17 vears

at Ford Motor Company wheze he

held 2 number of senior management

appointments including employes affairs

director of Ford of Europe Inc. He

joined Blue Circle Industries as assistanc

works director in 1973, became 2 main
" board director from 1978 and was chief

execurive of che UK cement and related

operations from 1933 o 1987.

Alan Thomas Fletcher

AA {81

Non-executive Deputy Chairman

was appointed on 26 May 1993.

He is managing parter of Rubicon
Parcners, chairman of Vector Industries
Limited and 2 director of Shepherd
Building Group and several other
companies. Formerly he was chairman
and chief executve of the Wilkinson
Sword Group and chief operating
officer of Swedish Macch,

Robert John Bary

CEng, FICE, FCIVEM, MIMyr,
ACLAb, FIWWO (32

Managing Direcior,

Sauth West Water Services Limited
was appointed on | March 1996, He
was formerly enginedring and scientific
dirzcror of South West Water Services
Limited having joined South West
Wacer Authority in 1988, Previously
he held engineering and operational
appointments with North West Water
Auchority

Colin Irwin John Hamilton
Drummond

MA, MBA (43)

Managing Director, Enterprise Division
was appointed on 1 April 1992, Prior to
joining the Company he was a divisional
chief executive of Coats Vivella, having
previously been corporate development
director of Renold ple, a strategy
consultant with the Boston Consulting
Group and an offcial of the Bank of
England.

Bruce Alexander Ogston Hewerrt
BSctEugr, MSi, Enrlng, CEng, FICE,
FCIHEM, FlMgr 160)

Direceor of Technical and
Environmental Affairs

was appointed on 1 April 1993, He

s over 31 vears’ experience in the
water industry. including nine vears
with inrernational consuling enginears
on dams. water supply and wasee water
schemes in the UK and overseas. Prior
to joining the Company he held senior
appointments with Southern Wacer Ple,
including managing director of Souchern
Water Services from 1988 o 1992, He
is 2 member of the American Sociery
of Civil Engineers, and the British
Commirtee of the Incernational Water
Supply Assoctation.

Kenneth Leslie Hill

CPF1 (33}

Group Director of Finance

was appointad on 21 Seprember 1989.
He is a chartered public finance
accountant with wide experience in
the water industry: Prior to joining the
Company he was finance director of
Severn Trent Wacer. He is 2 Ciry
Disputes panellist.

Sir Geoflrey Howes Chipperfield
KCB(63)

Non-execueive Director

was appotnted on 1 October 19935,

He was the permanent secretary and
chief exzcutive of PSA Services trom
1991 and previously be was permanent
secreqary in the Depactment of Energy.
He is Chairman of the Energy Advisory
Panel of the Depariment of Trade and
[ndusery and Chairman ot the Bridsh
Cement Association.

Simon James Day

MA L

Non-executive Dirvector

was appointed on { Seprember 1989
and was 2 member of South West
Wacer Auchority from October 1933,
He was vice chairman of the Assoctazion
of Counry Councils and is a member
of the Committee of the Regions of
the European Union. He is 2 member
and former leader of Devor Councy
Council and is chairman of governors

of Bicton College of Agriculture,

Timothy Charles Leader

BA, MIMhE, CIMg (68)
Non-executive Director

was appointed on | Seprember 1989,
He had held senior positions in the
engineering industry including chief
execurive ol Simon Engineering from
1985 to 1989,

Stanislas Michael Yassukovich
CBE (61

Nou-execntive Director

was appointed on 16 November

1992, He is chairman of Hemingway
Properties Pic and of Flextech Ple,
vice chairman of Cragnot & Partners
Group and Bristol & West Building
Socizty, director of Henderson
Administration Group and of several
other companies. He was formerly
chairman of Merrill Lynch Europe
and Middle East. He has been a depury
chairman of the Stock Exchange and
from 1938 to 1991 was chairman of
the Securities Association.

Committees of the Board

Audic

T C Leader (Chairman)

Sir Georfrey H Chippertteld
S Day

A T Flercher

Finance

K W Court (Chairman)
S] Day

A T Fletcher

KL Hil

T C Leader

S M Yassukovich

Nomination

A T Fletcher {Chairmman)
Sir Geofitey H Chipperiicld
K W Court

$ M Yassukovich

Remuneration

A T Flercher (Chairman)
Sir Geotfrey H Chippertield
T C Leader

Company secretary and
ragisterad office

R C Milligan
Peninsuls House, Rydon Lane
Exeter EX2 7THR

Registered in England No 2366640

Auditors
Price Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants
31 George Screet, Bristol BS1 3QD

Registrars

Liovds Bank Registrars
54 Pershore Road South
Birmingham B30 3EP
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Report of the Directors

The Directors of Souch West Wacer Ple (‘the
Company’) presenc their seventh Annual Report. in
respect of the vear ended 31 March 1996, together
with the audited Financial Stacements of che
Company ftor that vear,

The Financial Statements will be laid before the
shareholders at the sevench annua! gereral meeding
of the Company; o be held on 30 July 1996, notce
of which is given on page 33.

Principal activities

The principal activides of the Company and its
subsidiaries {‘the Group’) continusd to be the
provision of water and waste engineering, waste
management and environmental instrumentation.
The activities are described in more detail in the
operating reviews.

Financial results and dividend
Group profit on ordinary activities after taxation was
£98.8 million. The Directors recommend a final
dividend of 20.7p per ordinary share, making a rocal
for the year of 30.3p, the cost of which would be
£38.9 million, leaving retained profit £359.9 million
to be transferred into reserves.

The financial review on pages 13 to 17 analyses
the results in more detail, and sets out other financial
informacion.

Corporate governance
The Company complies fully with the provisions of
the Cadbury Committez’s Code of Best Practice.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors comprises five Executive
and five Non-executive Directors. The Board and
the Audit, Finance and Remuneration Committees
meet on a regular basis. The Nomination Commitcee
meets when a vacancy occurs on the Board. Srrategic
and key operational decisions are determined by the
Board. The Audic Committes reviews che audic plan,
financial controls and procedures as well as regularory
compliance matters; the Finance Committee reviews
dividend policy, financial statements and accounting
policies and the Remunerarion Commirttee reviews
the remuneration and benefics of the Executive
Directors and the overall remuneration and benefits
policy for senior management. Deuils of membership
of the Committzes is given on pags 19 and the Report
of the Remuneration Comumittee is on pages 23 to 27.
A procedure has been estabished for Directors to
take independent professional advice, if necessary, at
the Company’s expense.

Directors’ respousibility statement

The Directors are required by the Companies Act
1985 to prepare financial stacements for each financial
vear which give a true and tair view of the stace of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at the end
ot the financial vear and of the profit of the Group
for the financial year.

In preparing the financial statements appropriate
accouniing policies have been used and consistently
applied and reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates have been made. All relevant accounting
standards which the Directors consider to be
applicable have been followed,

The Directors have responsibilicy for ensuring
that accounting records are kept which disclose
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of
the Company and the Group which enable them
to ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 1983. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Internal control

The Directors are responsible for the Group's systemn

of internal financial control. A system can only

provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

There is an established internal control framework
which comprises:

a2 a clearly defined structure which delegates
authority, responsibility and accouncabilicy,
including responsibilicy for internal financial
conirol, to managemene of operating units;

b acomprehensive budgeting and reporting
function, with an annual budget approved by the
Board of Directors, which also monitors monchly
achieved resules and updated forecasts for the vear
against budger;

¢ documented financial control procedures;
managers of operating units ate required to
confirm annually that they have adequate financial
controls in operation, and to report all material
areas of financial risk; compliance with procedures
is reviewed by cthe Company’s internal audic
function; and

d an investment appraisal process for evaluating
proposals for all major capital expenditure and
acquisitions, with defined levels of approval and
a system for monitoring the progress of capital
projects.

The Audic Committee regulatly reviews the

operation and effectiveness of this framework.
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Going concern

The Directors consider, after making appropriate
enquiries, that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

Directors

Denails of the Directors at the dace of chis report are
given on page 19. Lady Mary Holborow retired as a
Director on 30 September 1995 and Mr W H Fraser left
the Company on 29 February 1996. Mr R j Baty was
appointed as an Execudve Direcror on 1 Mazch 1996.

Mr S J Day and Mr K L Hill are due to retire by
rotation at the annual general meeting. Having been
appointed by the Board during the year, Mr R J Baty
is also due to retire at the annuat general meeting.
All of the Directors due to redre offer themselves
for re-election and resolutions for their re-election
will be proposed ac the annual general meeting.

Mr K L Hill and Mr R J Baty have service contracts
which provide for not less than one year’s notice of
termination, by the Company or by the respective
Director, expiring at any time. Mr S J Day does not
have a service contract with the Company.

No Director has, or has had, a material interest,
directly or indirectly, at any time during the year
under review in any contzact significant to the
Company’s business.

Details of Directors’ interests in shares of the
Company are given on pages 26 and 27.

Employees
The Company is committed to effective
communication with all emplovees. Employees in
South West Water Services Limited elect representacives
from all levels to a Staff Council, which deals with
macters of concern to all staff employees, both trade
union and non-trade union members alike. The Statf
Council complements other forms of employes
gcommunication used throughout the Group,
including a monthly employee briefing system, an
employee newspaper and an employee ideas scheme.
Employees are encouraged to become shareholders
in the Company through the employee share schemes.
Training and development of staff is 2 prioriry and
particular actendon is given to the management of
change and training for revised working processes.
The Group operates a non-discriminatory
employment policy and makes every reasonable effore
to provide disabled people with equal opportunities
for employment, tzaining and development, having
regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities.

Research and development

Reesearch and development activides continued
throughout the Group during che vear. with
expendicure of £1.7 million on research. Further
information is included in che operating reviews.

Donations

During the year charitable donations amounting to
£32,000 were made. No political donadons were
made.

Tax status
The Company is not a close company within the mean-
ing of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988.

Payments to suppliers

The Company has a variety of payment terms wich
its suppliers. For the year ending 31 March 1997, the
payment terms for its business transactions will be
settfed when agreeing the other terms negotiated
with izs suppliers. Payment will be made in line with
these agreed terms, subject to the terms and
conditions being met by the suppliers.

Substantial shareholdings
At 27 June 1996 interests in che issued share capical
had been reported by:

Shares %
PDEM/UBS International 18,618,539 14.66
Nerwich Union
Life Insurance Sociery

Compagnie UAP

7,489,930 5.93
6,302,562 5.02

Future developments

Wessex Water Plc and Severn Trent Plc have each
announced their possible intention to make an offer
for the whole of the issued share capital of che
Company, subject to obtaining appropriate regulatory
clearances. These proposals, which did not contain
any formal commitment to make an offer, have
been referred to the Monopolies and Mergers
Commission. The Board did not solicit these
proposals nor were the proposals discussed with the
Board in advance of the announcements. The Board
will consider any serious proposals put to it which
fully reflect the value of the South West Water
Group’s business. These announcements have not
deflected the Company from continuing its
programme of improving operational efficiencies
and services to customers and developing its
non-regulated businesses.

Auditors
Price Watechouse were appointed auditors until the
conclusion of the seventh annual general meeting and
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continned

have indicated their willingness to continue in office.
A resclution for their re-appointment will be
proposed ar the annual general meeting.

Appoinred business

South West Wacer Services Limited is required to
publish addirional financial information relating o
the ‘Appointed Business” a5 warter and sewerage
underaker in accordance with the Instrument of
Appointment from che Secretary of State for the
Environment. A copy of this informacion will be
available from 30 September 1996 by application
to the Secretary at Peninsula House, Rydon Lane,
Exeter EX2 7HR..

Annual general meeting

The seventh anaual general meeting will be held ac
The Greac Hall, Universicy of Exeter, Exeter, Devon
on 30 July 1996 ar 11.00 a.m.

In addicion to the routine business, the following
resolutions will be proposed at the annual general
meeting:

Resolution 7 requests shareholder approval by
way of a special resolution to renew until next year’s
annual general meering the Directors’ exdsting
authoricy to allot equity securities for cash without

first being required o offer such securides to existing
shareholders. The share capital to which this
authority relates represents approximately 3% of

the Issued share capital at the date of this report.

The Direcrors consider that they should have such
authority in order to be able to rake advantage of
opportunities 1s they arise and ro retain flexdbilicy
alchough they have no current plans co issue shares.

Reesolution 8 requests shareholder approval by way
of a special resoludon for the Company to purchase
up to 10% of its ordinary shares at or between the
minimum aad maximum prices specified in the
resolution. The Direczors have no present intention
to make purchases under the proposed auchoricy.
Any decision in the future to do so will be made
regardiess of whether either or both of the possible
bids from Wessex Water Plc and Severn Trens Ple
proceed and only if such purchases would result in an
increase in the Company’s earnings per share and are
in the best interests of the Company’s shareholders

generally.
By Order of the Board /&(. /%%/\

R C Milligan, Company Secretary
Peninsula House, Rydon Lane, Exeter EX2 THR
27 June 1996

Report by the Auditors on

corporate governance matters

Repurt by the Auditors to the Directors of South West Water Plc on corporate governance matters

In addition to our audit of the financial statements
we have reviewed vour statements on pages 20 and
21 concerning the Group's compliance with the
paragraphs of the Code of Best Practice specified
for our review by the London Stock Exchange.
The objective of our review is to draw attension to
non-compliance with those paragraphs of the Code,
if not otherwise disclosed.

Basis of opinion

We carried out our review having regard 1o the
Bulletin 199571 "Disclosures relating to corporate
governance’ issued by the Auditng Practices Board.
That Bulletin does not require us to perform the
additional work necessary to, and we do not, express

any opinion on the effectiveness of either the Group's

system of internal financial control or corporate
governance procedures nor on the abilicy of the
Group to continue in operational existence.

Opinion

In our opinion, your statements on internal financial
controls on page 20 and on going concern on page
21, have provided the disclosures required by
paragraphs 4.5 and 4.6 of the Code (as supplemented
by the related guidance for directors) and are
consistent with the information which came o our
attention as a result of our audit work on che
financial statemens.

[n our opinion, based on enquiry of certain
Directors and officers of the Company and
examination of relevant documents, vour statement
on page 20 appropriately retlects the Group's
compliance wich the other paragraphs of the Code
sp fEnour review.

Price Watet W

Chartered Accountants
27 June 1996
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Remuneration Comunittee

The Remuneration Committee consists of the
Non-execuzive Depury Chairman, Mr A T Flercher,
who is Chairman of the Committes, and nwo Non-
executive Directors, Sir Geoffrey H Chippertield
and Mr T C Leader. The Executive Chairman is
normally present at meetings but takes no parcin
the consideracion of his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Cormumittee operates witchin
agreed terms of reference. These terms of reference
were revised during the year to bring them fully into
compliance with the Greenbury Code of Best
-Practice and wich Section A of che Best Practice
Provisions on Directors’ Remuneration, annexed
to the Stock Exchange Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for the determination of the Company’s policy
for executive remuneration and for deciding the
remuneration packages of Execucive Directors
which include salary, annual incentive bonus,
pension entitlement and participation in employee
share schemes and other benefits. All members of
the Remuneradion Committee have satisfied the
criteria for Remuneration Committee membership
laid down in both the Greenbury Code and the
Best Practice Provisions and the inteation is that
they serve for 2 period of no less than three vears, at
which point they may be considered for re-¢lection.

In reaching its decisions on the remuneration
of other Executive Directors, the Remuneration
Committee consults with the Executive Chairman
on its proposals and receives and reviews his
recommendations.

The fees and any other benefits received by
Remuneration Committee members and ather
Non-executive Directors are determined by the
Board, after taking external professional advice.
Non-executive Directors do not vote on any
resolution submitted as part of this process. The
other benefits received by Non-execudive Directors
include reimbursement of reasonable ravel and
accommeodation expenses. Non-executive Directors
are also covered by the Company's insurance policy
when on Company business.

The Remuneration Committee met on six
occasions during the vear under review.

Greenbury Code of Best Practice and Stock
Exchange Best Practice Provisions

The Remuneration Committee considers that
currently it complies fully with the Greenbury
Code’s requirements on rermuneration commitcees
and with Secdon A of the Stock Exchange’s Best
Practice Provisions and it intends to comply with

these provisions for the next accounting period.

The Chairman of the Remuneradon Comunittee will
attend the annual general meeting and be available o
answer questions about the remuneracion packages of
Executive Directors.

Full consideration has been given to the Best
Practice Provisions in respect of Directors’
remuneration and the Remunerarion Committee
comprehensively reviewed. with appropriate external
advice, the existing remuneration packages in the
light of the Greenbury Report and adjusted them
as necessary.

Service agreements

The period of notice provided by the Company
was reduced to a rolling 12 month notice period,
effecrive 1 July 1996, The notice period for any
new appointments will be a rolling 12 monchs.

Remuneration policy
The policy of the Remuneration Committee is to
provide for Executive Directors a remuneration
package which is adequace 1o actrace, retain and
motivate good quality executives and which is
commensurate wich the remuneration packages
provided by companies of similar size and complexicy
and in doing this makes use of the Arthur Andersen
Complexity and Size (AACS™) methodology.

[n ensuring that the value of that package is
appropriate to the circumstances of che business,
the Remuneration Committee also considers
arrangements in other businesses within the water
and sewerage sector within England and Wales.
In making its judgements, the Remuneraton
Committee also takes full account of the wider
scene, including the pay and employment conditions
in other sectors and elsewhere wichin the Group, and
in designing the elements of Executive Direccors’
remuneration, aims to align the interests of Directors
as closely as possible with those of the Company’s
shareholders and customers, particulagly with respect
to the performance related elements of remuneration.

The remuneration package comprises salary,
annual incentive bonus, pension benefits,
participation in employee share schemes and other
benefits consistent with those provided by other
comparable companies. Regarding longer term
incencives, share options are no longer being granted
under the Company’s Executive Share Option
Scheme and no new long-term incentive
arrangement has been instituted.

Salaries are normally reviewed annually; the
most recent review took place on 1 October 1995.

In reaching its decisions, the Remuneration
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Committee has access to internal and external
advice and has taken this in the period under
review to ensure thar salaries and other benefits
reflect the Executive Directors’ responsibilicies and
are appropriate to the size, complexity and location
of the Company. This year an external adviser,
Arthur Andersen, comprehensively reviewed the
remuneration package of the Execurive Directors,
as recommended by the Greenbury Committee.

Annual incentive bonus plan .
Executive Directors and senior management
participate in the annual incentive bonus plan.
The continuation of this plan, igs structure and its
participants are reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee on an annual basis. The plan is designed
to reinforce the major aspects of performance which
are pardcularly important to the Company in the
short-term and provides rewards based on
achievemnent of overall corporate and individual
objectives as set by the Remuneration Comumitree.
In the case of Executive Directors, the maximum
bonus achievable is 40% of base salary, 25% is zelaced
to corporate performance based on earnings per
shate and 15% to individual performance.
Performance measures and objectives under the
plan for the year are discussed and approved by the
Committee. Awards are made after the year end,
when the prior years financial results are known.
At this stage, the Committee may also take into
account other factors, including any major changes
in direction or circumstances thac have arisen during
the year. The awards for [995/96 have not yet been
determined.

Long-term incentive

Subsequent to the Board's decision that no further
options will be granted under the Company’s
Execudve Share Option Scheme, the Remuneraton
Commiztee has reviewed whether the Executive
Directors should be eligible to receive benefits under
a long-term incentive arrangement. As a resule of
this, the Remuneration Committee considers that,
in due course, 2 new long-term incentive plan
should be put in place, to reflect current comperitive
practice and to contribute to che alignment of the
interests of the Execurive Directors with those of
the Company’s shareholders and customers over the
longer term. It is therefore envisaged that a new plan
would be put before shareholders for their approval
at an appropriate juncture. In line with the
recommendations contained in the Best Practice
Provisions, the Comumittee will ensure thac awards
under any new plan will be fully subject to

challenging performance criceria, reflecting the
Company’s relative performance against cComparators
and will also ensure that awards made under the plan
are phased over time.

Executive pension arrangements

Executve Directors and senior management
participate in the South West Wacer Pension Scheme
and the South West Water Executive Pension
Scheme. These are funded defined benefit schemes.
Through membership of these schemss Exzcutive
Directors will be provided with a pension which at
normal retiremenc date will normally amount to
two-thirds of final pensionable pay (subject to any
restriction in respect of the Inland Revenue Earnings
Cap) and dependent on length of service.

Messrs Drummond, Hewett and Hill are subject
to the Earnings Cap and ate provided with additional
pension benefits under the unapproved, funded
Supplementary Pension Scheme in order to bring
their pension benefits up to the level which would
have been provided under the other schemes if the
Earnings Cap had not applied. Benefies were also
provided under the Supplemeniary Pension Scheme
in the period in respect of Mr K W Court. Execurive
Directors included in the unapproved pension
arrangements receive payments equivalent to the
tax liabilicy which arises in respect of Company
conrributions to the Supplementary Pension Scheme.

The pensionable pay for participants in these
arrangements consises of the highest basic salary in
any consecutive twelve month period of service
within five years of retirement, plus the average
bonus paid over the previous five years. The
Renmuneration Commistee is currently reviewing
the links berween the annual bonus plan 2nd the
pension arrangements and will report back o
shareholders in due course.

In determining all remuneration arrangements for
Executive Directors, the Remuneration Committee
gives full consideration to the impact of these on the
pension funds and costs of providing individual
pcnsion arrangements.

Board structure

In the light of the current circumstances, Mr K W
Court, Executive Chairman, agreed to the Board’s
request to stay on in his present role 2nd not retire

at the end of April 1996 as previously announced.
Mr A T Fletcher was appointed as Deputy Chairman,
with effect from 14 March 1996, and it is intended
that he will succeed M Court at an appropriate
time in the furture. Mr Fletcher's appointment will
be as Non-executive Chairman and it is the Boards
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intention that at thar time, on Mr Courds reticement,  Remuneration policy

a Group chief executive will also be appointed. In framing its policy and performing its functions

Me Barv was appointed as Managing Director of over the period under review che Remunsration
Souch West Water Services Limired with effect Committee has given full consideration to the

from 1 March 1996 ar a salary ot £85,000 p.a. Greenbury Code’s requirements on remuneration and

o Section B of the Stock Exchange’s Best Pracrice
Provisions and intends to give full consideration
these in the coming vear.

Emoluments of Directors
The emoluments of individual Directors, and che cost to the Company of pension contributions, are shown in
the table below:

Pension
Emolumaents contributions
Payments
1993 related to
Salary/ | Szalary/ | Performance Cther supplementary 1996 1995
fees fees bonus  emoluments pension Total Total 1996 1995
£000 EDQOO £000 £000 £000C £000 £000 £000 E£000
Executive Chairman
K W Court 104 99 10 7 4125 115 36 49
Executive Directors
R J Bary
(appointed 1 March 1996) 7 - - 1 - 8 - 2 -
C 1] H Drummond 82 77 12 8 11 113 88 39 25
W H Fraser
(resigned 29 February 1996) 109 | 107 9 16 28 162 134 62 63
B A O Hewett 84 St 10 8 5 107 95 28 29
KL Hill 89 86 13 S 10 120 104 37 34
Non-execative Direcrors
Sir Geoffrey H Chippertield 18 17 18 17
S]J Day 18 18 18 18
A T Fletcher 18 18 18 18
Lady Marv Holborow
(resigned 30 Seprember 1993) 11 2t 11 21
T C Leader 26 26 260 26
S M Yassukovich - 17 17 17 17
583 367 544 48 38 743 673 204 200

Orher emoluments include car benefir and health cover,

During the year, Mr W H Fraser, a Director of che Company and the previous Maraging Director of South Wast
Warer Services Limited, left the Company. He had a service agreement terminable by the Company on three
vears” notice. The Company agreed to pay Mr Fraser compensation for loss of office with a tocal value
approximately equal to 18 months’ salary and benefits. The compensation comprised a payment of £226,000,
addicional pension concributions of £100,000 and non-cash benefirs of £10,000. These payments are not
included in the above table.

Mr Fraser is entitled to exercise share options over 106,000 shares up to 28 February 1997 and over 10,000 shaces
up to 6 July 1993,

In addition, Mr Fraser agreed to give the Company access ¢o his international major capital projects experience
through a consultancy for twelve months at a fee of £50,000.
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Directors’ share interests

a Shareholdings

The number of shares of the Company in which Directors held beneficial incerests ar 31 March 1996 and
31 March 1993 (or date of appointment if later) were:

1996 1995 1996 1995
R J Bacy 11,005 11,005 A T Fletcher 1,089 1,033
Sir Geotlrey H Chipperfield 1,500 1,500 B A O Heweu 1,141 1,084
K W Court 45,799 43,788 KL Hil 12,580 9,080
S]] Day 1,500 1,500 T C Leader 1,368 1,296
C 1} H Drummond 1,462 1,392 S M Yassukovich - -

As 2 result of electing for a scrip dividend alternative, the following Directors acquired additional shares on

9 April 1996:

R J Bary 165 AT Fleccher 22
KW Court 797 B A O Hewent 22
C ] H Drummeond 1 T C Leader 26

R J Bacy and C I J H Drummond acquired an additional 25 and 14 shares respectively on 9 April 1996 as a
result of reinvestment of dividends in a Personal Equity Plan.
No Director had any interest in che shares of any subsidiary company during the year.

b Executive Share Option Scheme
Options to subscribe for shares of the Company under the Executive Share Option Scheme at 31 March 1996
and 31 March 1995 (or dace of appointment if later) were:

1996 1995
Grant date 1995 1983 1992 1991 Total Totat
Subscription price 503p 496p 418p 328p
R J Bary 7,500 15,000 4,600 20,000 47,100 47,100
K W .Court : 10,000 40,000 23,000 40,000 113,000 113,000
C I ] H Drummond 8,000 22,300 - - 30,500 64,000
B A O Hewer 15,000 30,000 - - 43,000 43,000
K L Hill 8,000 25,500 - - 33,500 89,300

During the year, C [ J H Drummond exercised options under the Scheme in respect of 33,500 shares atan
exercise price of +18p per share. At the date of exercise, the market price of the shares was 514p. K L Hill also
exercised options in respect of 30,000 shares and 26,000 shares at exercise prices of 328p and 418p respectively,
At the date of exsrcise, the market price of the shares was 499p. No other Director exercised any oprions during
the vear and no options were granted or lapsed during the year in respect of Directors. The exercise dates of the
above options and the performance targets in respect of exercise are shown in note 22 1o the financial statements.
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¢ Sharesave Scheme
Options to subscribe for shares of the Company under the Sharesave Scheme as ac 31 March 1995 and
31 March 1993 (or date of appoinunent if later) were:

1996 1633
Grant date 1995 1993 1992 1531 Total Tozal
Subscription price 3730 393p 332p 287p
R.]J Bary 2,714 - 2,239 - 5,033 5,033
K W Court - - 2,259 1,567 3,826 3,826
B A O Hewen - 4,389 - - 4,389 4,389

No Directors excrcised any options during the year and no options were granted or lapsed during the year in
" respect of Directors. The exercise dates of the sbove options are shown in note 22 to the financial starements.

d Share price
The market price of the Company’s shares at 31 March 1996 was 677p (1995 492p) and the range during the

vear to that date was +89pxo 678p (1995 462p to 5378p).
Y ,{}" /.PJ 1995 462p p)

A T Fletcher (/\/ / ](7[ £ /b R

Chairman, Remuneration Commirtee
27 June 1996

Report by the Auditors
on the financial statements

Auditors’ report to the shareholders of South VWest Water Ple

We have audiced the fnancial statements on pages
28 to 53 {including the addiricnal disclosures on
pages 23 to 27 relating to the remuneration ot the
Diractors spcéiﬂed for our review by the London
Stock Exchange) which have been prepared under
the historical cost conventon and the accounting
policies set out on pages 31 and 32.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and
Auditors

As described on page 20 the Company’s Directors are
responsible for the preparation of financial statements.
Iz is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those statements and to report
our opinion o you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing
Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board.

An audir includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in

are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company
and the Group, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audic 50 as to
obrain all the information and explanations which
we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
thac the financial statements are free from macerial
misstaternents, whether caused by fraud or other
iregularity or error. [n forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statemencs.

Opinion

[n our opinion the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the stage of atfairs of the Company
and of the Group at 31 March 1996 and of the profic
and cash flows of the Group tor the year then ended
and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985.

. . v
the financial stazements. It also includes an asscssmen%&%&,%/

of the significant estimates and judgements made by
the Directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies

Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants and Registered Audirors
27 June 1996
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Group profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 March 1996

1996 1985
Notes £m fm
Turnover
Conrinuing op2rations 293.8 286.2
Acquisitions 20.6 -
Toral turnover 2 314.4 286.2
Orther operating income 0.6 0.6
Operatng costs 3 (180.9y (200.6)
Operating profit
Conrtinuing operaions 129.0 86.2
Acquisitions 5.1 -
Total operating profit 2 134.1 86.2
Income from interests in associated undertakings 1.6 1.2
Net interest payable 3 (26.6) (24.2)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2 109.1 63.2
Tax on profit on erdinary activities 6 (10.3) (8.2)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 7 98.8 35.0
Dividends 8 (38.9) (34.3)
Retained profit transferred to reserves 23 59.9 20.5
Earnings per share 9 77.7p 43.7p
Earnings per share before exceptionail items g 77.8p 71.8p

The notes on pages 31 to 33 form part of these financial statemens.

Thers were no recognised gains or losses for the Group or Company, other than the protic for the vear,
in 1996 oc 1995.

A scarement of movements in reserves is given in note 23.
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Balance sheets

ar 31 March 1996

Group Company
1996 1895 1996 1983
MNotes £m £m £m £
Fixed assets
Tangible assers 12 01,2941 14777 i.8 21
[nvestments 13 7.1 1.5 331.4 428.3
1,301.2  1,182.2 333.2 130.6
Current assets
Stocks 14 19.7 142 - -
Debrors: amounts falling due after more than one year 13 5.4 4.3 188.3 192.5
Debtors: amounts falling due within one vear 16 62.6 56.9 14.3 11.0
- Investments 17 200.1 429.3 20.5 70.3
Cash at bank and in hand 0.9 3.1 - -
288.7 507.8 2231 2738
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 18 (225.1) (138.3) (110.6) (535.4)
Net current assets 63.6 349.5 112.5 218.4
Total assets less current liabilities 1,364.8 1,331.7 645.7 649.0
Craditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 19 (482.7) (633.9y (233.7) (237.0)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 20 {18.8) (29.7) ~ -
Deferred income 21 {23.2} (23.8) - -
Net assets 2 840.1 8443 410.0 412.0
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 22 127.4 126.5 127.4 126.5
Share premium account 23 144.9 1440 144.9 144.0
Other reserves 23 - - 3.1 3.1
Profit and loss account 23 567.8 573.8 134.6 138.4
Shareholders’ funds 24 840.1 8443 410.0 412.0

The notes on pages 31 to 53 form part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board on 27 June 1996 and signed on its behalf by:

K W Court, Chairman

KMM
S
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Group cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 March 1996

1998 1995
Notes £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 30 142.5 1343
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
[ntezest received 23.4 29.0
Intarest paid {39.3) (37.8)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments 4.7 {10.0)
Dividands received from associated underzakings 0.4 0.1
Dividends paid (32.3) {29.6)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance (52.7)  (48.3)
Taxation
Advance corporation rax paid (7.8} (6.8)
Investing activities
Payments 1o acquire tangible fixed assets (109.8)  (180.9)
Grang and contributions:
Infrascructure assets 3.2 3.1
Non-infrastructure assets 0.7 5.2
Receipts from disposal of tangible fixed assets 0.8 1.0
Payments to acquire current asset investments (672.0) (1,056.6)
Receipts from disposal of currenc asset investments 6933 1,147.0
Sale of investment in associated undertaking 0.4 -
Loan to associated undertaking (1.2) -
Acquisitions net ourflow 306 (93.4) 0.2)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (177.8) (8L.-H
Net cash outflow before financing (95.8) (2.2
Financing
Issue of shares for cash consideracion (1.8) (1.6)
Short-term loans raised (35.4) -
Loans repaid 5.1 3.7
Amounts received under finance l2ase arrangements (12.5) (32.0
Cash deposited against finance lease obligations 150.0 -
Capital element of finance lease rental payments 6.1 1.6
Net cash outflow/{inflow) from financing 111.5 (43.3)
{Decreaselfincrease in cash and cash equivalents 304 (207.3) 43.1
(95.8) (2.2
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies
The following paragraphs describe the main policies:

a Accounting convention

The financial stacements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention and in compliance
wich ail applicable accounting standards, the
requirements of the London Stock Exchange and,
except for the reament of granes and conrributions
on infrastructure assets, with the Companies Act
1985. An explanadon of this departure from the

. requirements of the Companies Act 1985 is given
in note 1{ below. ° '

b Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements include che results
of the Company and its subsidiary, undertakings,
each made up to 31 March 1996, together with the
atcributable share of results and reserves of associated
undertakings on the basis of their latest financial
statements. The results of subsidiary and associated
undertakings acquired during the year are included
for the periods of ownership.

¢ Turnover

Turnover, excluding Value Added Tax, represents the
income receivable in the ordinary course of business
for goods and services provided.

d Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
{ Infrastructure assets (being mains and sewers,
impounding and pumped raw water storage
reservoirs, dams, sludge pipelines and sea oucfalls)
Infrastructure assets comprise 2 network of systems.
Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating o
increases in capacity or enhancements of the nerwork
is treated as capital expenditure on tangible fixed
assets and included at cost after deducrting grants
and contributions. No depreciation is charged on
infrastructure assets because the necwork of systems is
required to be mainained in perpetuiry and therefore
has no finite sconomic lifs.

Expenditure on maincaining the operating capabilicy
of the necwork is charged as an operating cost.
Expenditure on the maintenance of infrastructure
assets may vary significantdy from the long term
normal annual level. In such instances, the charge
against profits is equalised by way of accruals or
deferrals as appropriate to reflect the long term

normal level of charges, in accordance with defined
standards of service.

ii  Landfill sites

Landfili sites are included ac cost less accumulated
depreciation. The cost of a landfill site is depreciated
over its estimated operational life taking account of
the usage of void space. Cost includes acquisition and
development expenses.

iit Other assets (including properties, overground
plant and equipment)

Other assets are stated at cost less accumuiated

depreciation.

Frechold land is not depreciated. Other assets are
depreciated evenly over their estimated economic
lives, which are principally as follows:

Leasehold buildings Qver the period of the lease
Freehold buildings 30-60 years
Operational structures 40-80 years
Fixed plant 20-40 years
Vehicles, mobile plant and computers 3-10 years

Assats in the course of construction are not
depreciated until commissioned.

e Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases are included in the
balance sheet as tangible fixed assets at their
equivalent capital value and are depreciated over their
estimated economic lives or the finance lease period,
whichever is the shorter. The corresponding liabilicy
is recorded as a creditor. The interest element of

the rental costs is charged against profits, using the
actuarial method, over che period of the leass.

Rental costs arising under operating leases are
charged against profits in the year they are incurred.

f Grants and contributions

Granss and contribucions receivable in respect of
capital expenditure on non-infrastructure assets are
inciuded in the balance sheet as deferred income and
are released to profits over cthe depreciable lives of the
assets to which they relate.

Grants and contributions receivable relating to
infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cosc

31
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

1 Accounting policies continued

f Grants and conteibutions connined

of tangible fixed assets. This is not in accordance with
the Companies Act 1933 which requires rangible
fixed assers co be shown at cost and hence grants and
contriburions as deterred income. This departure
from the requirements of the Companies Ace 1985
is, in the opinion of the Directors, necessary for the
financial statements to show a true and fair view as
no provision is made for depreciarion and any grancs
and coneribudions relating to such assews would not
be taken to the profic and loss account. The effect
of this weatment on the value of tangible fixed

assets is disclosed in note 12.

Grants and contributions receivable in respect of
expendicure charged against profits in the year have
been included in che profir and loss account.

g Investments
Listed investments held as current assets are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Short dated unlisted securicies held as currenc assets
are stated at cost plus accrued income.

h Stocks

Stocks are stated ac the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes labour, marerials and
an element of overheads.

i Pension costs

The expected cost of pensions in respect of the
Group's defined benefit pension schemes is charged
against profits so as to spread evendy the cost of
pensions over the service lives of employees in the
schemes. A pension surplus is released to profiss,
using the straight line method, over the average
remaining service lives of employees in the schemes.

Pension costs for the Group's defined contribution
schemes are charged against profits in the year in
which they are incurred.

j Research expenditure
Research expendicure s charged against profits in the
vear in which it is incurred.

k Taxation

Tax payable on profics for the vear is provided at
current razes. Tax deferred or accelerated as a resule
of dming differences between the trearment of
certain izems for taxation and for accounting
purposes is provided for to the extenc chat it is
probable chat a marerial liabilicy or asset will
crystallise in the foreseeable furure.

1 Goodwil

Goodwill, arising from the purchase of subsidiary and
associated underrakings, representing the excess of
the purchase consideration over the fair value of net
assets acquired, is written off to Group reserves.

m Foreign currency

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into sterling at the rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Profit and loss
accounes are translated ac average rates for the relevant
accounting period. Exchange differences arising from
the retranslation of the opening net investment in
overseas enrerprises at closing rates, offser by translation
differences on foreign currency loans which finance
such investments, are deale with in reserves.

n Landfill restoration and environmental
COSsts

Provisions tor cestoration, aftercare and

environmental control costs are made over the

estimated operational life of landhil sites taking

account of the usage of void space.
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2 Segmental analysis

By class of business: Turnovar Operating profit Profit befors tax Nat assetsfiliabilitizs)
1996 1595 1996 1995 1996 1545 1998 1883
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Water and sewerage services  239.3 2367 124.8 822 104.0 60.3 907.4 850.1
Less: Intra-group trading (1.3} (1.6 - - - - (5.2) (5.2
237.8 2351 1248 822 i04.0 60.3 902.2 344
Non-reguiated businesses:
Waste management 34.1 22.0 5.3 0.9 4.3 0.5 38.5 3.6
Environmental instrumentation 31.3 26.1 1.7 1.4 1.4 0.5 11.2 5.1
Construction services 31.7 241 1.4 0.1 1.1 0.1 0.6 1.1
- . Other 14.3 15.1 21 2.5 (0.6) 3.0 (107.9) {10.2
111.6 87.3 10.5 49 6.4 39 (57.6) 26
Less: Intra~group trading (33.0) (36.2) (1.2) 0.9 (1.3) (1.0) 4.5) (3.2
76.6 511 9.3 4.0 5.1 29 (62.1) (0.6)
3144 2862 1341 86.2 109.1 63.2 840.1 8443

The segmentcal analysis has been expanded to provide extended disclosure of business classes in view of their

increasing significance and comparatives have been amended accordingly.

Water and sewerage services comprise the regulated water and waste water business.

The exceptional items set out in note 4 are wholly atributable to water and sewerage services.

Net liabilities of Other includes parenc company financing of the acquisition of non-regulated businesses, and
profit before tax of Other is shown after interest arising thereon.

The analyses presented above include the following amounts for the operations acquired during the year:

Operating Profit Net assets/

Turnover profit beforetax  (liavilities)

fm £m Em £m

Waste management 11.2 +.0 +.0 30.t
Environmental instrumentation 8.6 1.1 1.2 8.1
Construction seevices 0.8 - - (1.1
20.6 5.1 5.2 371

An analysis by geographical origin and destination is not appropriate as the Group's activity was substantially

located in the United Kingdom.
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

3 Operating costs

Centinuing
operations Acquisitions Total Total
1996 1986 1996 1995
£m £m £m £m
Manpower costs (note 10) 33.8 3.7 37.5 65.2
Raw materials and consumables 26.1 4.5 30.6 242
Renrals under operating leases:
Hire of plant and machinery 1.9 0.1 2.0 2.4
Orher operating leases 1.4 - 1.4 1.0
Research expenditure 1.0 0.7 1.7 1.6
Auditors' remuneration 0.2 - 0.2 0.2
Orther external charges 49.1 0.6 49.7 45.6
Depreciation:
On owned assets 15.9 2.9 18.8 15.5
Onr assees held under finance leases 12.9 - 12.9 10.5
Provision for diminution in value - - - 8.3
Deferred income released to profits {0.8) - {0.8) {0.6)
Infrastructure renewals charge 6.9 - 6.9 6.1
Other operating charges 17.0 3.0 20.0 20.6

165.4 15.5 180.9 200.6

Fees payable o the Company’s auditors for non-audic work amounted to £0.5m (1995 £0.5m).

Operating costs include the exceptional items set out in note 4.

4 Exceptional items

1998 1995
£m £m
Operating profit is after charging/(crediting) the following exceptional items:
Turnover:
Water and sewerage business customer charges rebate 6.9 -
Operating costs:
Water and sewerage business restructuring provision (release)/charge (7.3) 35.5
Costs associated with the proposed takeover bids 0.7 -
{6.8) 355
0.1 355

The restructuring provision charge in 1993 comprised manpower costs £20.1m, provision for diminuzion in
value of tangible fixed assets £8.3m, and other operating charges of £7.1m. The restructuring provision release
in 1996, relating to continuing operations, comprised manpower costs, and included £7.3m for pension costs.
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5 Net interest payable

1996 1995
£m £m
[nterest payable:

Bank loans and overdrafis (15.9) {13.8)
Other loans (23.0) {22.9)
Interest element of finance lease rencals (10.2) (11.5)
Other finance costs (0.1} (0.8)
(49.2) (49.0)

Incerest receivable:
- Listed redeemable securities 4.3 7.6
Other investments {as defined in note 17) 18.3 17.2
22.6 24.8
Net interest payable (26.6) (24.2)

Interest element of finance lease rentals is shown afeer £6.+m (1993 nil) interest receivable on cash deposited

against finance lease obligations {note 25}.

6 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

1996 1995
£m £m
United Kingdom taxation:

Corporation tax at 33% 2.7 -

Advance corporation tax:
Current vear dividends 8.9 8.2
Previous year utilisation (1.4) -
Overseas taxation 0.1 -
10.3 8.2

The corporation tax charge for the vear has been reduced by the availability of capiral aliowances for which no

deferred tax has been provided (note 20).
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7 Profit of parent company

1996 1995
£m £m

Profit on ordinary activities atter taxation dealt with in the accounts of
the parent compaay 32.7 139.2

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, no profit and loss account is presented for the

Company.
8 Dividends
1996 1995
£m £m
Interim dividend of 9.8p (1993 9.1p) per share paid 9 April 1996 12.3 11.5
Proposed final dividend of 20.7p (1995 18.2p) per share payable 1 October 1996 26.4 23.0
‘ 389 345
9 Earnings per share
Profit en ordinary
activities after taxation Earnings per share
1996 1995 1996 1995
£m £m
After exceptional icemns 98.8 330 77.7p 43.7p
Exceptional items (note 4) 0.1 353 0.1p 28.1p
Before exceptional iterns 98.9 90.5 77.8p 71.8p

Earnings per share before exceptional items have been caleulated to show the impact of such items on the
results, as they can have a distorting etfect on earnings from year to year and therefore warranc separate

consideration.

Earnings per share for 1996, calculated in accordance with the guidelines issued by the [nstituze of Tavestrment
Management and Research, were 77.7p (1995 50.2p).

Earnings per share on the nil distribution basis was 84.7p (1995 50.2p). This has been calculated by eliminating
the taxation charge of £8.9m (1995 £8.2my) in respect of irrecoverable advance corporation tax on the interim
and proposed final dividends.

The above earnings per share figuces have been calculaced by dividing the profit on ordinary activities by

127.1 million being the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year (1995 126.0 million). There
would have been no significant dilution of earnings per share if the outstanding shares which might be issued

in respect of the Company’s share option schemes, referred to in note 22, had been in issue during the vear,
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10 Employees and employment costs
The average number of persons (including Direcrors) emploved by the Group was:

1996 1555

Water and sewerage services 1,813 2,034
Waste management 322 271
Emvironmental instrumentation 357 233
Construction secvices 398 339
Ocher businesses 113 154
3,005 3,083

The manpower analysis has been expanded to provide extended disclosure of business classes in view of their
increasing significance and comparacives have been amended accordingly.

Employmenc €OSTS comprise: Continuing
. operations Acquisitions Total Total
1996 1996 1996 1995
£m £m £m £m

Wages and salaries:

excluding exceptional items 51.5 3.4 54.9 53.6

exceptional items (0.2) - {0.2) 9.5
Social security costs 4.4 0.7 5.1 4.7
Pension costs (note 28):

exctuding exceptional items {1.0) 0.2 (0.8) 4.2

exceptional trems {7.3) - (7.3) 10.6
Toral employment costs 47.4 4.3 51.7 82.6
Charged as follows:
Manpower costs (note 3):

excluding exceptional items 41.3 3.7 45.0 45.1

exceptional irems (7.3) - (7.3) 20.1

7 33.8 3.7 37.5 63.2

Reesearch expenditure 0.6 0.6 1.2 0.6
Capital schemes and infrastructure renewals expenditure 11.9 - 11.9 16.3
Restructuring provision 1.1 - 1.1 -

47.4 4.3 51.7 82.6
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

11 Directors’ emoluments

1996 1895
£000 £000
Executive Dirsctors:

Remuneration — salary 475 430
— performance bonus 54 -
Othar emoluments 43 47
Pension contributions 204 200
Pavments in respect of tax liabilicy from supplementary pension arrangements 38 39

Non-executive Direcrors:
Fees 108 117
947 873
Compensation in respect of a service agreement 336 _
Total emaolumernts of Directors of the Company 1,283 873

Total emoluments include £206,000 (1995 £168,000) payable to Directors for services as directors of
subsidiary undertakings. '

The emoluments of ¢he Chairman, excluding pension contributions, were £125,000 (1995 £115,000} and the
emoluments of the highest paid Director, excluding pension concributions and compensation payment, were
L£162,000 (1995 £154,000).

The following table shows the number of other Directors whose emoluments, excluding pensioa contributions,
fell wichin each band of £3,000:

Range {£) 1996 1995 Range (£) 1996 1985

3,001 — 10,000 1 - 95,001 — 100,000 - 1

10,001 - 15,000 : 1 - 100,001 — 103,000 - 1

13,001 — 20,000 i 4 105,001 - 110,000 1 -

20,001 — 25,000 - 1 110,001 - 113,000 1 -

25,001 - 30,000 1 1 120,001 — 125,000 1 -
85,001 — 90,000 | - i

Performance bonuses for 1995 have been disclosed in 1996 numbers above. The bonuses payable for 1996
performance have not yet been determined and will be disclosed in the 1997 financial scatements.

More decailed information concerning Directors’ emolumenss, shareholdings and share options is shown in
the Report of the Remuneration Committee on pages 23 o 27.
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12 Tangible fixed assets

Group
Fixed and
mobife plant,
Land and |nfrastructure  Operational  vehicles and Construction Total
huildings assets properties computers  in progress 1926
£m £m £m £m £mn £m
Cost
Acl April 1995 43.8 +12.3 316.0 312.2 2222 1,341.5
Additions 4.4 22.6 23.0 26.1 342 110.3
Grants and contributions 2.7 2.7
Arising on acquisitions 35.1 - - 7.4 - 42.5
" Disposals {+.2) - - =0 - (8.2)
Transfers 0.3 71.6 50.4 38.7 (161.0) -
At 31 March 1996 844 533.8 389.4 380.4 95.4 1,483.4
Depreciation:
At 1 April 1993 13.3 38.5 92.0 163.8
Charge for year 3.1 7.3 2238 332
Disposals (4.4 - (3.3} 7.7
At 31 March 1996 12.0 65.8 111.5 189.3
Net book value:
At 31 March 1996 72.4 533.8 323.6 268.9 934 1,294.1
At 31 March 1993 35.5 4423 237.5 220.2 222.2 1,177.7
Assets held under finance leases included above:
Cost: At 31 March 1996 179.4 112.7 10.9 303.0
Depreciation: Charge for year 3.5 9.3 12.9
Depreciation: At 31 March 1996 7.3 30.0 37.3
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12 Tangible fixed assets continued

Group convinued
The cost of land and buildings and of operational properties includes non-depreciable land of £3.9m
(1993 £4.2m) and £7.6m (1995 £6.4m) respectively.

Nert book value of land and buildings comprises:

1996 1995

£m £m

Frechold 65.1 28.8
Long leasehold 0.2 0.2
Short leasehold 7.1 6.3
72.4 33.3

Included within freehold land and buildings is £2.5m (1995 £2.5m) for an invesument property that has been

valued by an emplovee of the Group who is a Chartered Surveyor.

The net book value of infrastructure assets is stated after deducting £30.9m (1995 £28.2m) grants and

contributions.

Qur of the total depreciation charge for the Group of £33.2m (1995 £27.9m), the sum of £1.5m
(1995 £1.9m) has been charged to capital projects and £31.7m {1995 £26.0m) agrinst profits.

Company Fixed and
Freehold maobile plant,

land and  wvehicles and Total
buildings computers 1996
£m £m £m
Cost:
Ac 1 April 1995 20 1.2 3.2
Additions - 0.2 0.2
Disposals 0.1} (0.2) (0.3)
Ar 31 March 1996 1.9 1.2 3.1
Depreciation:
Ar t April 1995 0.6 0.5 1.1
Charge for vear - 0.2 0.2
At 31 March 1996 0.6 0.7 1.3
Net book value:
Ar 31 March 1996 1.3 0.3 1.8
At 31 March 1995 1.4 0.7 2.1
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13 Fixed asset investments Group Company
Shares Loans Total Shares Loans Total

1996 1996

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Subsidiary undertakings

Cost:

Aecl April 1995 +23.7 - 423.7
Additions 105.8 - 108.8
Provisions (3-3) - (5.5)
At 31 March 1996 527.0 - 5327.0

Associated undertakings
* Cost (Company) or share of net assers (Group):

Ar 1 April 1995 1.5 3.0 4.5 1.8 30 4.8
Additdons 6.5 1.2 7.7 - - -
Goodwill writcen off (3.1} - (5.1)

Sale of investment (0.4 - 0.4 (0.4} - 0.4
Profit for year 0.8 - 0.8

Dividends received (0.4 - {0.4)

At 31 March 1996 2.9 4.2 7.1 1.4 3.0 4.4
Total investments

At 31 March 1996 2.9 4.2 7.1 328.4 3.0 331.4
Ar 31 March 1995 1.5 3.0 4.5 423.3 3.0 4285

Profit for vear of £0.8m {1995 £1.0m) comprised income from interests in associated undertakings at Llom
(1995 £1.2m), disclosed in the profit and loss account, less £0.8m (1995 £0.2m) included elsewhere in the
balance sheer.

Details of principal subsidiary and associated undertakings of the Group are set out in note 27.

14 Stocks Group Company
1996 1995 1896 1895
£m £m £m £m
Raw materials and consumables 4.3 27 - -
Work in progress 11.0 8.2 - -
Finished goods 4.2 3.3 - -
19.7 142 - -

15 Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year Group Company
1996 1995 1996 1995
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 187.3 191.9
Amounts owed by associated undertakings - 0.6 - 0.6
Orther debtors - 0.1 - -
Prepaymens for pension costs 5.4 - 1.0 -
Other prepayments and accrued income - 3.6 - -

5.4 4.3 188.3 1925

a1
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16 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
1996 1853 1956 1895
£m im £m £m
Trade debrors 40.7 349 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary underakings 13.3 10.3
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 0.8 -+ 0.5 0.3
Ocher debrors 3.1 4 0.1
Prepavments and accrued income 17.9 211 0.2 0.4
Advance corporation tax recoverable 0.1 0.1 - -
62.6 36.9 14.3 11.0
17 Current asset investments
Group Company
1996 1995 1896 1995
£m £m £m £m
Listed investments 57.5 6+4.2 - -
Qther investments 142.6 363.1 20.5 70.3
200.1 429.3 20.5 70.3
Marker value of lsted investments 57.7 64.3 - -

Orther investments include certificates of deposit, variable rate notes, commercial paper and other short-dated

unlisted securicies.

£150.0m (1995 nil) deposited against finance lease obligations (note 23) is not included in the Group

numbers.

18 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company

1996 1995 1996 1995
£m £m £m Em

Loans:
Bank loans and overdratts 2.2 +.8 15.4 2.4
Shorc-term loans 354 - 35.0 -
Stetling notes 0.3 0.5 0.3 0.5
European Investmence Bank loans 7.8 4.7 - -
Series B unsecured loan stock notes 4.4 4.8 4.4 4.8
50.3 148 53.3 7.7
Obligations under finance leases 15.5 13.8 - -
Trade creditors 63.3 56.0 6.2 4.3
Amounts owed to associated undertakings 0.3 1.0 - -
Other creditors 7.8 2.0 1.2 0.4
Advance corporation tax 9.8 9.0 8.9
Corporation t2x 2.4 -
Other taxation and social securicy 4.3 2 - -
Accruals and deferred income 33.2 23.1 0.1 0.1
[nterim dividend 11.6 11.6 1.0
Proposed final dividend 26.4 2 26.4 23.0
225.1 138.3 110.6 35.4
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19 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company

1996 1995 1996 1985
£m m £m £m

Loans:
Sterling bond 150.0 1530.0 150.0 150.0
Sterling notes 85.4 35.9 85.4 83.9
European Investment Bank loans 115.6 123.4 - -
Other loans 0.3 0.3 - -
3313 339.6 235.4 2359
Obligations under finance leases 128.7 2725 -
- Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 0.2 0.1
Ozher creditors 2.7 1.8 0.1 1.0

482.7 633.9 235.7 237.0

20 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Environmental

Infrastructure and landfill Restructuring Group
renewals restoration costs Total
£m £m £m. £m
At 1 April 1995 3.7 0.6 234 - 29.7
Charged agzinst profits 6.9 1.0 - 7.9
Arising on acquistrions - 10.3 - 10.3
Utilised during year (8.3) {0.9) (12.2) (21.6)
Released to profics - - (7.3) (7.5)
At 31 March 1596 2.1 11.0 5.7 18.8

Deferred taxation
The maximum potential liabilicy for deferred taxation, for which no provision is considered necessary, was:

Group

1996 1895
£m £m

Tax effect of dming differences due to:
Accelerated capital allowances 61.8 345
Orther timing differences (5.4) (10.8)
36.4 13.7
Advance corporation tax recoverable (34.1) {26.5)
Maximurm potendal liabilicy 22.3 17.2

As infrastructure assets are not depreciaced, deferred raxation will crysuallise in the event of their disposal

2t amounts in excess of their tax written-down value. The tax effece (at 33%) due to accelerated capital
allowances on infrastructure assets which has been excluded above amounts to £128.1m (1995 £110.4m).
Advance corporation tax of £8.8m, additional to the amount set out in the table above, is available to be set
against this lability (1995 £%.9m). In the opinion of the Directors, the likelihood of a liability crystallising

in the foresesable fucure is remorte.
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21 Deferred income

Group
1996 1995
£m Em
Ar 1 April 24.5 19.9
Addirions 0.5 3.2
Reeleased o profits {0.8) (0.6)
Ar 31 March 24.2 245
To be refeased within one vear (1.0) 0.7
To be released after more than one year 23.2 23.8
22 Called-up share capital
1996 1995
£m £m
Authorised
175,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 175.0 175.0
Alloted, called-up and fully paid
127,421,387 ordinary shares of £1 each (1995 126,503,736) 127.4 126.5
1996 1995
Ordinary shares allotred during year
In leu of £2.1m cash {1995 £2.3m) under scrip dividend alternative 405,681 439,826
For consideration of £1.4m (1995 £0.8m) under Scuth West Water
Executive Share Option Scheme to Directors and senior employees
who exercised their options 365,100 231,700
For consideration of £0.4m (1995 £0.8m) under South West Water
Sharesave Scheme to employees who exercised their options 146,820 453,689
917,601 1,127,215

Share cptions

Outstanding options to subscribe for shares of £1 each under the Company’s share option schemes are:

Date granted and Period when Thousands of shares in

subscription price Performance options normaliy respect of which options

Mature of scheme fully paid targets exercisabls outstanding at 31 March
1996 1995

Sharesave 12 Dec 1989 176p - 1995 — 1997 206 269
5 July 1991 287p - 1996 — 1998 358 426

3 July 1992 332p - 1997 — 1999 257 312

2 July 1993 393p - £998 - 2000 177 205

6 Jan 1995 373p - 2000 — 2002 426 475

Execurive 18 Jan 1990 293p a 1993 - 2000 - 13
5 July 1991 328p a 1994 — 2001 273 390

3 July 1992 +18p a 1995 — 2002 256 438

5 July 1993 . 496p b 1996 — 2003 455 512

6 Jan 1993 503p ¢ 1998 — 2003 313 338

2,721 3,378
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22 Called-up share capital continued

Share options conzinusd

The performance targets for exercise of Execucive Scheme options are:
a gross dividend vield of 9.68% on the 1989 water share offer price;

b increase in earnings per share in excess of the Rerail Price Index movemenc over the period March 1993

to date of exercise;

¢ increase in earnings per share in excess of the Retail Price Index movement over the period March 1994

to date of exercise.

At 31 March 1996 there were 992 participans in the Sharesave Scheme (1995 1,182) and 80 in the Execunive

Scheme (1995 93).

. Opdons granted to Directors, included above, are included in the Reporc of the Remuneration Committee on

pages 26 and 27.

23 Reserves

Groupand Company Group Company
Campany other profit orafit
share reserves and loss and loss
premium account account
account
£m £m Em £m
At L April 1995 144.0 31 5738 133.4
Reerained profit/{loss) for year 39.9 (6.2)
Premium on shares issued 1.3
Adjustment for shares issued under the scrip dividend alternative 0.4 24 24
Goodwill arising on acquisitions (68.3}
At 31 March 19%6 144.9 31 567.8 134.6

The cumulative value of goodwill az 31 March 1996 resulting from acquisitions, which has been written off to

teserves, 18 £108.6m (1995 £40.5m).

24 Statement of movements in shareheolders’ funds

Group Company

1996 1995 1996 1835

£m Em £m £m

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 98.8 330 32.7 139.2

Dividends (38.9) (34.3) {38.9) (34.3)

39.9 20.5 (6.2) 10+.7

Adjustment for shares issued under the scrip dividend alternacive 2.4 2.0 2.4 20

Shares issued for cash consideration 1.8 1.6 1.8 1.6
Goodwill writcen off (68.3) (1.1

Shareholders’ funds (equicy interest):

(Reduction)/addition for year (4.2) 23.0 (2.0} 108.3

At 1 April 844.3 8213 412.0 303.7

At 31 March 840.1 8443 410.0 412.0
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25 Loans and other borrowings

Group Company

Loans 1996 1995 1996 1995
£m £m £m £m

Repayable:
After five vears 2241 2335 150.0 150.0
Betwezen two and five years 117.7 115.8 84.9 85.4
Berwesn one and two years 9.5 3.3 0.5 0.5
Falling due after more than one vear (note 19) 351.3 339.6 2354 235.9
Falling due within one year (note 18) 50.3 148 55.3 77
401.6 3744 290.7 2436

Group Company

Obligations under finance leases 1996 1895 1996 1995
£m £m £m £m

Reepayable:
After five years 113.4 257.8 - -
Between two and five years 9.1 10.6 - -
Berween one and two years 6.2 4.1 - -
Falling due after more than one vear (note 19) 128.7 2725 - -
Falling cue within one year (note 18) 15.5 13.8 - -
144.2 286.3 - -

Included above are finance charges arising on obligations under finance leases which are repayable within one
vear and amount to £9.8m (1995 £8.4m).

Obligations under finance leases of £150.0m (1995 nil) are not included above because cash of an equal
amoune has been deposited with the lessor’s bank group; South West Water Services Limited can insist this
cash is ueilised to meet cthe finance lease obligations as they fall due. Such cash deposits are likewise not shown
on the balance shest. South West Water Services Limited has no present plans to withdraw the cash deposits
but, in the evenc that some, or all, of the deposits were withdrawn, an e¢quivalent amounc of finance lease
obligations would require to be reinstated a5 a liabilicy in the balance sheet.

Loans and obligations under finance leases
[ncluded above are instalment debts, of which any part falls due for payment after five vears, and non-instalment
debrs due after five years:

Group Company
1996 1895 1996 1995
£m Em £m Em
Loans 263.7 273.6 150.0 130.0
Obligations under finance leases 122.4 265.4 - -

388.1 539.0 150.0 150.0

Loans and other borrowings are predominantly denominated in scetling and are repayable over the period
1996 to 2018. The rates of interest payable on loans and other borrowings, any part of which is due after five
years, range berween 4% and 12%.
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26 Acquisitions

During the vear the Group acquired interests in the following:

Goodwiil
Consideration  Fair value written off
and costs acquired to reserves

£m £m Em

Blue Circle Waste Management Limited 70.7 278 42.9

reat Lakes Instruments Inc. 241 6.6 17.5
Orther:

Warren Jones Limired 0.7 - 0.7

Elcar 3tl 6.5 1.4 51

Engineered Products Limited 1.0 {1.1) 2.1

103.0 34.7 68.3

All acquisitions were accounted for using the acquisition method.

On 19 July 1995 the entire issued share capital of Blue Circle Waste Management Limited (now reftamed
Haul Waste Disposal Limited) was purchased by South West Water Plc and Peninsula Waste Technology
Limited {2 100% owned Group company) for a cash and contingent consideration of £70.7m, including
costs of £1.0m. A contingent consideration of £2.0m is linked to development of 2 landfill site. Prior to

1 Apsil 1995 the activities of Blue Circle Waste Management Limited were carried out as a division of Blue
Circle Industries Ple. For the period from 1 April 1995 o 19 july 1995 the profit after tax amounted

to £0.6m,

On 31 August 1995 the entire issued share capital of Great Lakes Instruments Inc. was purchased by GLI
Acquisition Inc. (2 100% owned Group company) for a cash consideration of £24.1m, including costs of
£0.8m. The profit after tax of the company for the eleven months ended 31 August 1993 was £0.4m.

On 29 September 1993 the entire issued share capital of Warren Jones Limited was purchased by ELE
International Limited (a 100% owned Group company) for a cash consideration of £0.7m.

On 4 October 1995 a 50% interest in Elcar Stl (now renamed Societ [talo Britannica del'Acqua Sel)

was purchased by Exe Continental Limited (a 100% owned Group company) for a cash and contingent
consideration of £6.5m, including costs of £0.5m. The contingent consideration of £4.8m is linked to
net asset warrantiss and post-acquisition profit achievement, and an initial £3.0m was paid on 3 May 1996.

On 14 February 1996 the entire issued share capital of Enginesred Products Limited was purchased by
T J Brent Limited (a 100% owned Group company) for a cash and contingen: consideration of £1.0m.
A contingent consideration of £0.4m is linked 1o post-acquisition profit achievement.
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26 Acquisitions continued

The operating assets and liabilities of the above acquisitions were:

Book value Fair valua Fair
Bluz Circle Great Lakes Other Total adjustments value
Waste Management Instruments total
Lirmited Inc.

£m £fm £fm £m £m £m
Tangible fixed assets 11.8 338 0.5 16.1 264 425
Associated undertakings - - +.0 4.0 (2.3) 1.5
Stocks 0.1 1.8 0.8 2.7 0.1 28
Debrors due within one vear 4.8 0.6 2.3 7.7 (1.9) 5.8

Cash at bank and in hand - 27 - 2.7 - 2.
Bank overdraft (0.-h) - 0.3) {0.7) - {0.7)
Craditors dus within one vear (3.1) (1.9 (2.7 (7.7 (i.4) 8.1}
Creditors due after more than one year - 0.1 0.4 (0.5) 0.1 (0.4)
Finance lease obligations - {0.1) - 0.1 - 0.1)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 2.0 - - (2.0) (8.3 (10.3)
11.2 6.8 4.2 222 12.5 347

The following fair value adjustments were made to the book value of the assets and liabilicies of the above

acquisitions:
Blue Circle Great Lakes Cther Total
Waste Management Instruments
Limited Inc.
£m £m £m £m
Revaluation of tangible fixed assers ‘ 26.4 0.2 {0.2) 26.4
Accounting policy harmonisacion:
Provisions {8.3) - - (8.3}
Other - (0.3} (3.7 (+.0)
Ocher adjustments (1.3) (0.1) - (1.6)
' 16.6 ©2 (3.9 12.5

Other adjustments comprise planning appeal and pension costs.
Elcar Stl fair value adjusements, included in other, are provisional.

During the year £9.6m fair value acquisition accruals and provisions were established (1995 nil), £0.8m were
udilised (1995 £1.3m) and at 31 March 1996 £10.5m (1995 £1.7m) was carried forward.
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27 Principal subsidiary and associated undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings (wholly owned): Country of incorporation,

registration and principal

49

Exe International Inc.
Great Lakes Inscruments Inc.

T ] Brent Limited*
Exe Contnental Limited*

Peninsula [nsurance Limited*

Peninsula Properties (Exeter) Limited*

Rydon Properties Limited*

United States
United States

England
England
Guernsey
England

England

operations Activity

South West Water Services Limiced* England Water and sewerage services
Peninsula Waste Technology Limited* England Holding company
Haul Waste Limited England Waste management
Haul Waste Disposal Limited England Waste management
ELE Group Limited* England Holding company

~ ELE International Limired England Instrumentation
ELE International Inc. United States Instrumentation
GLI International Limited England Instrumentation
Water West Limited* England Holding company

Holding company
Instrumentation

Construction services-
Holding company
Insurance
Property development

Properry investment

Shares of those undertakings marked with an asterisk (*) were held directly by the Company. Otherwise,
except for Haul Waste Disposal Limired, the shares of subsidiary undertakings were held by the immediately
preceding holding company in the list above. All shares in issue are ordinary shares except those of Haul Waste

Disposal Eimited.

Haul Waste Disposal Limited has ordinary, preference and deferred shares in issue. The ordinary and deferred
shares are held by Peninsula Waste Technology Limited and the prefersnce shares ate held by Souch West

Water Ple.

Associated undertakings:

Share and Joan capital in issue

Pell Frischmann Water Limited*

Westcountry Television Limited*

Sociea [talo Britannica del'Acqua Srl
(shares held by Exe Continental Limired)

6,666 ordinary £1
3,334 ordinary £1 {(non-voting)
£,030,000 ordinary 10p

L5m subordinated loan stock

6 billion lire share capital
6 billion lire subordinated
loan stock

Percentage
held Activity
25% Engineering
100% consultancy
23% Television
60% broadcasting
30% Construction
and operating
50% concessions

Shares of those companies marked with an asterisk (¥) were held directly by the Company.
On 12 June 1996 the Company sold its interest in Pell Frischmann Water Limited.
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28 Pensions
The Group operates 2 number of pension schemes. The rwo major schemes are funded defined benefic
schemes and the assets of the schemes are held in separate trustee adminiscered funds.

The latest actuarial valuarions of the two main schemes were at 31 March 1996. At thac date, the market value
of the schemes’ assets was £140.2m, 2nd the actuarial value of chose assets represented 135% and 146% of the
benefits chat had accrued to members, after allowing for expected future increases in earnings. The
assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results of the valuations are those relating to the rate
of return on investmenss and the rates of increase in earnings and pensions. The valuations assume that the
investment recurn would be 9% per annum and pensionable pay increases would average 7% per annum and
that present and furure pensions would increase at a rate of 4.5% and 5% per annum for the two main schemes.

For accounting purposes, the results of these valuations have also been used to estimate the two main scaemes’
position as at 1 April 1995 and because of the actuarial surpluses the net pension credit for the Group for the
year ended 31 March 1996 was £0.8m (1995 £+.2m charge) before exceptional irems. The pension cost of
the defined benefit schemes has been determined on the advice of independent qualified actuaries using the
projected unit method. The employers’ regular pension cost for the year of the two main schemes is 10.3% and
13.8% of pensionable earnings (1995 10.5% and 14.9%). The actuarial surpluses for the two main schemes are
being recognised using the straight line mechod of amortisation over the average remaining service lives of the
currens members of each scheme. Following the actuarial valuations, emplover contribucions to the two main
schemes have ceased until the next actuarial review (which is expected to be in 1999).

Pension prepayments included in debtors of the Group amount to £3.4m (1995 nil}, representing the
difference between the Group pension credit and employer contributions paid.

In 1993, a provision of £10.6m was made in respect of additional employer pension contributions which
were expected as a resule of the restructuring of the water and sewerage business. During 1995/96, £3.35m
of this provision was urilised and, as set out in note 10, £7.3m has been released to profits.
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29 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Group Cormpany
1996 1995 1996 1995
£m £m £m Em
Capiral comminments
Conrracted but not provided 28.6 17.9 - -
Commitments under operating leases
Rentals during the vear following the balance sheet date:
Land and buildings — leases expiring:
Within one year 0.1 0.3 - -
Between one and five years 0.2 0.8 - -
After five years 0.4 0.7 - -
Other-leases expiring:
Between one and five years - 0.1 - -
0.7 1.9 - -
Contingent liabilities
Contractors’ claims on capital schemes 18.8 18.9
Guarantees 4.9 1.9 292.5 422.9
23.7 20.8 292.5 4229

Guarantees by the Company are principally in respect of borrowing facilicies of subsidiary undertakings.
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

30 Notes to the Group cash flow statement

a Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities 19£96 152:95

m m
Operating profic 134.1 86.2
Depreciation charge 31.7 26.0
Provision for diminucion in value - 8.3
Deferred income released o profits (0.8) (0.6)
(Decrease)/increase in provisions for liabilicies and charges (21.1) 25.4
Increase in stocks 2.7 (8.0)
Increase in debrors (amounts falling due within and over one vyear) (6.9) (3.4
Increase in creditors (amouns falling due within and over one year) 8.3 0.5
Profit on disposal of rangible fixed assets (0.3) 0.1
Net cash inflow from operating activities 142.5 134.3

Cash ourflows from operating activities accounted for as exceptional items, included above, were £11.8m
(1995 £1.8m).

b Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of acquisitions 1996 1985
£m Em
Cash consideration 95.4 0.2
Cash at bank and in hand acquired (2.7) -
Bank overdraft acquired 0.7 -
93.4 0.2
¢ Acquisitions comprised 19986 1995
£m £m
Tangible fixed assets ' 42.3 {0.6)
Associated undertakings i.5 -
Stocks _ 2.8 -
Debtors: amounts flling due within one year 5.8 o4
Cash ar bank and in hand 2.7 -
Bank overdraft , {6.7) -
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year {9.1) (0.3)
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one vear {0.4) 0.1
Provisions for liabilities and charges (10.3) -
Finance lease obligations and loans (0.1) (0.3
Fair value of net assets acquired 34.7 (0.9)
Goodwill 68.3 i.1
103.0 0.2

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration 95.4 0.2
Loan stock 0.4 -
Conrtingent consideration 7.2 -
103.0 0.2

The subsidiary underrakings acquired during the vear contributed an inflow of £9.7m to the Group’s net
operating cashflow, received £0.1m in respect of net returns on investments and servicing of finance, and
utitised £5.8m for investing acdvities. The subsidiary underaking acquired during 1995 did not contribute

materially to the Group’s cashflow in that year.
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30 Notes to the Group cash flow statement continued

d Balances of cash and cash eqguivalents

Current asset investments
Deducr investumnents not wichin three months of maturicy

1996 1995
£m Em

200.1 4293

Change in  Changegin

1996 1895
£m £m

(229.2)  (30.3)

when purchased (143.7y  {163.2} 213 90.4
56.4 2641  (207.7) 401
Cash at bank and in hand 0.9 3.1 (2.2) 1.5
Bank overdrafts (2.2 4.8 2.6 1.7
551 2624 (207.3)  43.1

_ Cash and cash equivalents

e Changes in financing during the year

Share capital
{including premium)
1996 1995
£m £m

Loans and finance
lease obligations
1996 1885
£m Em

Acl April 270.5 268.9 647.5 604.0
Cash inflows/ (outflows} from financing 1.8 1.6 (113.3) 43.7
Release of premium on sterling notes {0.5) (0.3)
Loans and finance lease obligations of subsidiary undertakings acquired 0.1 0.3
At 31 March 272.3 270.5 533.8 647.5
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Five year financial summary

1396 1983 1994 1993 1992
Profit and loss account £m £m Em £m £m
Turnover 314.4 286.2 2531.6 194.4 166.3
Operatng profic 134.1 86.2 106.4 82.8 64.2
Income/(loss) from interests in associzted undertakings 1.6 1.2 0.7 (2.0) 0.1
Nec interest (payable) /receivable (26.6) (24.2) (14.1) 11.9 259
Profit on ordinary activities before raxadon 109.1 63.2 93.0 92.7 90.0
Tax on profit on ordinary activities {10.3) (8.2) (7.1) (8.5} (8.9)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 98.8 55.0 85.9 8412 81.1
Dividends (38.9) (34.3) {32.0) {29.5) (26.8)
Reetained profit transferred to reserves 59.9 205 53.9 347 54.3
Earnings per share:
Before exceptional items 77.8p  71.8p 68.5p 67.9p 66.1p
After exceptional items 77.7p 43.7p
Dividend per share 30.5p 27.3p 25.5p 23.7p 21.7p
Capital expenditure £m £m £m £m fm
Acquisidons and invesument 103.0 0.2 17.9 321 +.8
Tangible fixed assets 110.3 159.4 203.4 203.7 172.4
Balance sheet £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets 1,301.2 11,1822 1,063.0 882.1 679.5
Net currenc assets 63.6 349.5 373.9 3940 402.1
Non-current labilices (324.7) (687.4) (617.6) (496.6) (343.4)
Net assets 840.1 8443 3213 779.5 738.2
Number of employees {average for year}
Water and sewerage services 1,815 2,084 2,141 2,044 2,084
Waste management 322 271 242 33 -
Environmental inscrumencation 3537 235 244 119 144
Construction services 398 339 291 111 S1
Other business 113 134 142 147 140
3,005 3,083 3,060 2,336 2,449
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Notice of meeting

The seventh annual general meeting of South West
Water Ple will be held ar The Great Hall, Universicy
of Exeter, Exeter, Devon on 30 July 1996 at

11.00 am for the rransaction of the following

business:

Resolution 1

To receive the Report of the Directors and
the financial stacements for the year ended
31 March 1996.

" Resolution 2
To declare 2 final dividend for the year ended
31 March 1996.

Resolution 3
To re-elect Mr S J Day as a Director.

Resolution 4
To re-elect Mr K L Hill as a Director.

Resolution 5

To re-elect Mr R J Bacy as a Director.

Resolution 6

To re-appoint Price Waterhouse as auditors until
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
at which financial statements are laid before the
Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their

remuneration.

Resolution 7 '
To propese the following as a special resolution:
Thac, in accordance with Article 6 of the
Company's Articles of Association, a) the Directors
be given power to alloc equity securities for cash,
b) that for the purpose of paragraph (A)(ii) of that
Article, the nominal amount to which this power is
limited is £6,391,000 and ¢} this power shall expire
on 30 Ocrober 1997 or, if eatlier, at the conclusion

of the nexr annual general meesting of the Company.

Resolution 8

To propose the following as a special resolution:
That the Company is generally and

uncondidonally authorised to make market purchases

(within the meaning of section 163 of the

Corpanies Act 1983) of ordinary shares of £t each

in the capical of the Company (“ordinarv shares™ on
such zerms and in such manaer as the Directors of
the Company may from time to time cetermine
provided chaz:

{a) the maximum number of ordinary shares that
may be purchased under chis authorice is 12,783,000
(being 10% of the current issued shars capiral of che
Company);

(b) the maximum price which may be paid for an
ordinary share purchased under this authority is an
amount equal to 103% of the average of the middle
market quotations for ordinary shares, as derived
from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List
for the 10 business days immediately preceding the
day on which that share is purchased, and the
minimum price which may be paid is £1 per
ordinary share; and

{c) this authoricy will, unless previously varied,
revoked or renewed, expire at the conclusion of the
next annual general meeting of the Company, buc the
Company may make a contract 1o purchase ordinary
shares under this authority before its expiry which
will or may be executed wholly or pardy after the
expiry of this authority and may make purchases of
ordinary shares pursuant to such 2 conirace,

Bv order of the Board

R C Milligan, Company Secretary M_\

Peninsula House, Riydon Lane, Exeter EX2 7HR
27 June 1996

Notes

A person entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is
entitded to appoint one or more proxies to attznd and, on
a poll, voee instead of him or her. A proxy need not be a
member of the Company.

A Form of Proxy is enclosed and, if used, should be
lodged with the Company’s Registzars, Llovds Bank
Reegistracs, not less than 48 hours before the dme fixed for
the meeting.

The Registar of Directors’ [nterests and copies of the
Dirzcrors’ service coneracts will be availablz for inspection
during notrmal business hours at the Company's registersd
ofice from the dace of this nodce uncil the dace of the
meedng, and at che place of the meeting fom 10.00 a.m.
until the conclusion of the meeting.
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Shareholder information

Financial calendar

Financial vear end 31 March
Seventh annual general meeting 30 July 1996
1996 Final dividend pavable 1 Ocrober 1996
1997 Incerim results announcement November 1996
1997 lnterim dividend payvable April 1997
1997 Preliminary results announcement May 1997
Eighrh annual general meeting July 1997
1997 Final dividend payable Ocrober 1997
Shareholders’ analysis at 31 March 1986 Number of Percentage Percentage
shareholders of total of ordinary
sharehoiders shares
1-100 4,303 12.9 0.2
101-1,000 24,889 746 7.9
1,001-5,000 3,384 10.1 4.2
5,001-30,000 482 1.4 7.6
50,001-100,000 116 0.4 6.8
Ower 100,000 186 0.6 73.3
33,360 100.0 100.0
Fndividuals 30,757 92.2 11.4
Companies 494 1.4 6.0
Trust companies {pension funds, etc) 18 0.1 .5
Banks and nominees 2,056 6.2 75.1
Insurance companies 35 0.1 6.0
33,360 100.0 100.0

Shareholder services

Share dealing service
The low-cost share dealing service enables investors to buy and sell shares in the Company on a low-cost basis
and o make regular investments in che Company.

Personal equity plans
By holding their shares in the Company in the general or the single company personal equity plan,
sharcholders may gain tax advantages.

Serip dividend alternative
The scrip dividend alternacive enables shareholders to receive their dividends in the form of shares instead
of cash.

Derails of the scrip dividend alternative are enclosed and details of the other shareholder services are available
from the Company Secretary’s Department (telephone: (01392) 446688).

CREST

CREST is the new computerised syscem for setding sales and purchases of shares which will begin in july
1996. A leaBlet giving general guidance about what CREST will mean for private sharcholders is enclosed
with this report.
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